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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR'S SPEECH

LADIES AND GENTLEMEN,

My heartiest greetings to you on behalf of FSNL Private Limited(FSNL) (Formerly Known
as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited).I am pleased to share that FSNL has performed well during
the Financial Year 2024-25 in terms of physical and financial performance.

PHYSICAL PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

The Company performed well during the year and FSNL achieved a dispatch of 33.81 lakh
melric tons of scrap and 119.59 lakh metric tons of slag haulage (in total 153.40 Lakh Ton).
The physical performance has been achieved despite the reduction in the input of scrap from
current arising and also from old dumps.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

The company's total earnings were Rs. 47673.92 lakhs compared to the previous year's
figure of Rs. 46771.77 lakhs. The company’s gross margin and the profit before tax during
the year were Rs. 10202.10 lakhs and Rs. 8455.77 lakhs as compared to the previous year's
figure of Rs. 10541.04 lakhs and Rs. 8811.70 lakhs respectively.

FUTURE PLANS & EXPANSION ACTIVITIES

FSNL is well positioned for rendering its services to Steel Plants in a better way. FSNL has
planned its diversification towards the following areas:

1) Value addition and uses of SMS Slag.

2) Operation and maintenance of various shops inside the Steel Plants as per
requirement of the customer.

3) Crushing and Screening of Iron Ore in Iron Ore Mines.

4) Removal of Overburden and excavation of Coal in open cast Coal Mines.

5) Manufacturing of soil conditioner from SMS Slag.

6) BOQ project for MRP and SSP Plants.

7) BOQO basis project for making Briquette Plant and Micro Pellet Plant.

Your Company has bagged new contract, received LOI from JSW, Dolvi for the job of
Installation, Operation & Maintenance of Metal Recovery Plant and Slag to Sand Plant
at JSW Dolvi Works on BOO basis for 15 years. The Contract Agreement is being signed
shortly.



SIGNIFICANT LEGAL CASE AFFECTING BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY

FSNL has filed an appeal no. MAT 244/2019 dated 15.02.2019 with the Divisional Bench of
Hon'ble Calcutta High Court to challenge the Order Passed by the single bench of Calcutta
High Court under writ petition no. 33074 (W) of 2013 wherein the single bench has quashed
the nomination policy for the award of work on a nomination basis to FSNL.

The Divisional Bench of Hon'ble Calcutta High Court vide order dated 01.04.2019 has
stayed the order of Single Bench of Calcutta High Court in the writ petition no. 33074 (W) of
2013. The existing system of awarding work to FSNL on a nomination basis shall continue till
the disposal of the Appeal. Accordingly, all existing Work contracts awarded to FSNL on a
nomination basis are under judicial review. The court has ruled that under the new
management, FSNL will no longer receive preferential treatment for processing scrap from
Steel Authority of India Limited (SAIL). FSNL will now need to compete in the open market
for scrap processing work from SAIL.

100% DISINVESTMENT OF FSNL BY MSTC TO KONOIKE JAPAN FINALIZED

The Cabinet Committee on Economic Affairs (CCEA), Government of India, in its meeting
held on October 27, 2016, accorded its ‘in-principle’ approval for the strategic disinvestment
of the entire equity shareholding held through MSTC Limited in Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited
(FSNL), along with the transfer of management control. The Department of Investment &
Public Asset Management (DIPAM) is overseeing the strategic disinvestment on behalf of the
Government of India.

FSNL has been privatized through a competitive disinvestment process. Pursuant to the Share
Purchase Agreement dated 24.10.2024, 100% shareholding of FSNL held by MSTC Limited
has been transferred to Konoike Transport Co., Ltd. ("Konoike Japan'), a foreign body
corporate incorporated in Japan, with effect from the Board Meeting held on 21.01.2025.

CHANGE OF NAME OF FERRO SCRAP NIGAM LIMITED TO FSNL PRIVATE
LIMITED

Subsequent to its privatization, the name of Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited has been changed to
FSNL Private Limited with effect from 29.04.2025.

STATUS OF SCRAP RECOVERY CONTRACT:

Validity of Long Term Agreements with various Steel Plants /Customers are as Under:

a)  Bhilai Steel Plant — Agreement is valid upto 31.03.2026.

b)  Bokaro Steel Plant — Agreement is valid upto 31.03.2026.

¢)  Rourkela Steel Plant — Agreement is valid upto 31.03.2026.
d)  Durgapur Steel Plant — Agreement is valid upto 31.03.2026.
e) ISP Burnpur — Agreement is valid upto 31.03.2026.

7 Salem Steel Plant — Agreement is valid upto 31.03.2026.



g)  RINL, Visakhapatnam Steel Plant, Agreement is valid upto
31.03.2026.

h)  NMDC Steel Plant, Nagarnar — Agreement is valid upto 31.03.2026.

i)  MIDHANI, Hyderabad — Agreement is valid upto 30.09.2025

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & OTHER POLICIES

During the FY 2024-25, FSNL has discharged its Corporate Social Responsibilities in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of the same are
disclosed in the Directors’ Report of the Company.

FSNL is constantly making its best efforts for implementation of official language policy at its
Corporate Olffice and Units.

The Whistle Blower Policy is fully operational in your company.

To prevent sexual harassment of women at workplace in your organization, an Internal
Complaints Committee is in place to deal with complaints, if any, of the women employees
(including permanent, trainee, contractual/ outsourced, etc.) of the company. The summary of
complaints received and dealt during the financial year is disclosed in the Directors’ Report
of the Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Before I conclude, I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere thanks to our
valued customers i.e. SAIL Steel Plants, RINL, MIDHANI, JSW and NMDC Steel Limited.
Board also expresses gratitude to Konoike Transport Co., Ltd., Japan our holding
Company.

As a Japanese national, I deeply value harmony and discipline—values I see reflected in
FSNL'’s dedicated team. I extend my gratitude to our customers, partners, employees, and

trade unions for their trust and cooperation.

Let us continue working together with kaizen spirit—continuous improvement—for a
prosperous future.

Wishing you and your families a joyful Durga Puja, Diwali, and festive season ahead

Thanking you,

Jai Hind! il /a——- /,: l/.‘"
F}é’—)b QAL T

Place: Bhilai Toshihiro Fujiwara

Date: 10.07.2025 Chairman and Director

DIN: 10903855
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To,

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Members of
FSNL PRIVATE LIMITED
{(Formerly Known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

Your Directors are pleased to present the 46" Annual Report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31% March, 2025 along with the Statutory Auditor's Report. The Report on
Corporate Governance and Management Discussion and Analysis has also been attached to this report.

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS (2024-25)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Physical Performance

The Company maintained well in physical targets in all key operational areas, FSNL achieved a
dispatch of 33.81 lakh metric tons of scrap and 119.59 lakh metric tons of slag haulage (in total
153.40 Lakh Ton). The physical performance has been achieved despite reduction in input of scrap
from current arising and also from old dumps. The achievement of scrap & slag was possible by
augmenting the present activities at Burnpur, Bhilai, Bokaro & Nagarnar and also due to the excellent
work culture, team spirit, hard work and dedication of all the employees as well as cooperation and
support received from customers.

Sustainable Development.

(i) FSNL has been utilizing solar plant since 2013 for ifs corporate office and its garden. The
Company continues its efforts towards the green office concept by having installed a rooftop 15
KW Solar Power Unit at its Corporate Office. With the help of 5 KVA & 10 KVA capacity Solar
Power Plant was installed, whereby, with the enhanced solar power generation, in 2024-25 —
10568 KVA of Solar energy was utilized from the solar energy power generated from rooftop
solar power plant installed at Corporate Office, Bhilal.

(i The Company is continuously making its efforts in conservation of natural resources through
Rain Water Harvesting at Corporate Office and Bhilai Unit for recharging rainwater into ground
fo improve the groundwater table.

Procurement through Government E-Marketplace (GeM)

As a Digital India initiative, the Company has started extensively using GeM Portal hosted by DGS &
D for secondary purchases. The value of purchase made in the financial year 2024-25 is Rs. 6287.50
Lakhs.

Energy Conservation

The Company continues its efforts towards green office concept by having installed rooftop 15 KW
Solar Power Unit at its Corporate Office.

During the year 2024-25 under review the Company has conserved the energy by utilizing 10568
KVA of electrical power through Solar Power Unit.



(e) Capacity Utilization

The company operated at 98.57 % capacity in the year 2024-25.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
(Restated)
Total Revenue 47673.92 46771.77
Profit Before Tax 8455.77 8811.70
Profit After Tax (PAT) 6296.40 6586.31
Gross Margin 10202.10 10541.04
Balance brought forward from previous year 116.03 (796.58)
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) {333.38) (43.70)
Profit available for Appropriations 6079.05 5756.03
Appropriations:
Final Equity Dividend payout of previous year 0.00 1280.00
Interim Equity Dividend payout of Current year 0.00 1280.00
General Reserve 5940.00 3080.00
Surplus carried to the next year's account 139.05 116,03
Earnings per Share (Rs.) (Face Value Rs. 10/-) 19.68 20.61
PBT Per Employee 21.74 19.49

The total earnings of the company was Rs. 47673.92 lakhs as compared to the previous year's figure
of Rs. 46771.77 lakhs. The company's gross margin and the profit before tax during the year was Rs.
10202.10 lakhs and Rs. 8455.77 lakhs as compared to the previous year's figure of Rs. 10541.04 lakhs
and Rs. 8811.70 lakhs respectively.

CAPEX:

The company has incurred expenditure to the tune of Rs. 1520.27 Lakhs towards acquisition/addition of
fixed assets in the year 2024-25 from its resources generated internaily on accrual basis.

GENERAL RESERVES:
The General Reserves of the Company is Rs. 28419.51 lakhs as on 31 March, 2025.
DIVIDEND:
In line with the company’s sirategic focus, the Board of Directors has decided not to declare a

dividend for the financial year 2024-25. This decision has been made to prioritize reinvestment into
the business, strengthen the company's financial position, and support future growth initiatives.




CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNING & OUTGO:

The information is pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption,
and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are given in the Annexure-l forming part of this report.

STATUS OF SCRAP RECOVERY CONTRACT:
Validity of Long Term Agreements with various Steel Plants /Customers are as Under:

a) Bhilai Steel Plant — Agreement is valid upto 31.03.2026.

b) Bokaro Steel Plant — Agreement is valid upto 31.03.2026.

c) Rourkela Steel Plant — Agreement is valid upto 31.03.2026.

d) Durgapur Steel Plant — Agreement is valid upto 31.03.2026.

e) [SP Burnpur - Agreement is valid upto 31.03.2026.

f) Salem Steel Plant — Agreement is valid upto 31.03.2026.

a) RINL, Visakhapatnam Steel Plant, Agreement is valid upto 31.03.2026.
h) NMDC Steel Plant, Nagarnar — Agreement is valid upto 31.03.2026.

i) MIDHANI, Hyderabad — Agreement is valid upto 30.00.2025

PERSONNEL

The total strength of manpower in the company as on 31.03.2025 was 389, comprising of 128
Executives and 261 Non-executives. The overall representation of employees belonging fo
Scheduled Caste, Scheduled Tribe & OBC communities as on 31st March 2025 was 19.02%, 8.74%
& 25.45%, respectively. The Presidential directives issued from time to time with regard to
reservation of vacancies for SC/ST/OBC & Divyang personnel in Recruitments, are strictly adhered to
by FSNL.

Out of the total strength of 388 employees as on 31.03.2025, the strengih of Male & Female
employees was 379 & 10, respectively.

The position of SC/ST/OBC, Minority & Physically challenged employees in various groups as on 31.03.2025
was as follows:-

Group No. of S.C. S.T. OBC Minority | Physically
Employees Challenged
Male Female | Male Femalg Male Female|Male Female|Male Female Male Female

A. 120 08 20 - 03 - 25 03 02 - - -

B. 216 01 32 01 16 - 58 - 17 - - -

C. 42 01 20 - 15 - 13 - 11 - - -

D.

Excl.Safai

Karmachari

D.

Incld.Safai 01 - 01 - - - - - - - - -

Karmachari

TOTAL 379 10 73 01 34 - 96 03 30 - - -

RECRUITMENTS

2 numbers of executives on fixed term basis were engaged during the FY 2024-25.



WELFARE OF MINORITIES

The directives issued from time to time for the welfare of Minorities have been strictly adhered to by
the company. As on 31st March 2025, out of 389 employees, the total strength of employees
belonging to Minority communities was 30, and the percentage of representation of Minorities in
FSNL was 7.71% as on 31st March 2025.

All welfare measures as in vogue / introduced by the company from time to time for the benefit of the
employees are uniformly extended to all the employees including employees belonging to Minority
community.

WELFARE OF WEAKER SECTIONS

All categories of employees, including SC/ST/OBC community, are provided with all welfare
measures uniformly as per the rules of the company.

IMPLEMENTATION OF RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT, 2005

In compliance with the mandatory provisions of the RTI Act, FSNL has appointed a Public Information
Officer (PIO) at Corporate Office and one APIO each at its units. Further, as per the provisions of the
RTI Act 2005, the first appellate authority has also been appointed at Corporate Office. The company
has complied the information under 17 different templates/ manuals for voluntary /Suo-moto
disclosures required under section 4 (1)(b) of the Act and hosted the same on the company's website
"fsnl.nic.in". The information so published are being regularly updated.

The company is proactively complying with the provisions of Right to Information Act, 2005. All
information sought under the act is being furnished within the stipulated time limit.

Quarterly reports are submitied to the CIC regularly. All applications for information are dealt with as
per the prescribed guidelines of the RTI Act, 2005. The total 36 numbers of RTI application received
during the financial year 2024-25All applications were replied within stipulated time and no
applications were pending, as on 31.03.2025.

VIGILANCE ACTIVITIES

The Vigilance Department has been focusing on "Preventive & Proactive Vigilance" and accordingly
co-ordination with the management in improving upon the existing procedure & system fo achieve the
overall objectives of the Company. routine and Surprise Checks, Scrutiny of Files, Scrutiny of Audit
Reports, System Study, random Scrutiny of Property Return of employees and CTE type Intensive
Examination of Works were carried out as a preventive measure. Apart from this, required various
Reports/Returns were submitted to Ministry / CVC and also structured meeting held with the
Managing Director.

Complaints received from various source were handled as per the Complaint Handling Mechanism
guidelines / procedure of CVC.

Constant efforts are being made for Leveraging technology to bring transparency in the affairs of the
Company. Transparency and fairness for award of contracts is continuously being monitored. Total
67 numbers of Work Order / Purchase Orders covered under Integrity Pact. Various suggestions
were given to management for Systemic Improvements in line with CVC guidelines.

In compliance to CVC's directives, Vigilance Awareness Week was observed in the Company from
28th October 2024 to 03rd November 2024 on the theme "TRIMST B WgHT ¥ g & Fqfg 7
‘Culture of Integrity for Nation’s Prosperity”. During this week various activities like Essay Writing




Competition, Drawing/Cartoon making Competition, Pamphlet distribution in public places, taking
pledge by the employees, Vendors meet, Workshop on preventive vigilance, Walkathon etc., were
carried out to create vigilance awareness among the employees/stakeholders as well as public. In
addition to the above, to create awareness among general public an Essay VWriting & Debate
Competition conducted in School and College. Publicity in local News Papers was also given to
spread awareness on vigilance. As a precursor to VAW 2024 a three months campaign on
Preventive Vigilance measures viz. “Capacity Building Programs; Identification and implementation of
Systemic Improvement measures; Updation of Circular/Guidelines/Manuals; Disposal of complaints
received before 30.06.2024 and Dynamic Digital Presence” were taken up from 16th August 2024 to
15th November 2024 as per CVC guidelines.

SAFETY

As a measure of creating awareness among the employees about safety & safe working practices,
Safety Day celebrations were organized in all the units of FSNL as well as at Corporate Office,
wherein debates on safety & allied matters, talk on safely & safe working practices efc., were
organized. Winners of the competitions were given suitable prizes to boost up their morale and to
motivate other employees also to take part in such competitions.

A unit level Safety committee, comprising of membersfrepresentatives both from Workers and
Management have been constituted and are functional at units of FSNL. The meeting of the
committee is held on monthly basis at units, wherein matters pertaining to safety & safe working
practices are discussed to ensure safe working environment.

Special training programmes for prevention of accidents were organized by maintaining close liaison
with the Safety departments of the concerned Steel Plants as well as the reputed agencies like
National Safety Council. During 2024-25, the frequency rate of reportable accidents was 0.09% per
thousand man-days worked.

WORKERS' PARTICIPATION IN MANAGEMENT

In smooth functioning of any organization, Workers' Participation in management plays a vital role.
Considering this, and also to ensure optimum participation of workers in all spheres of activities
undertaken by the management, a Joint Forum Committee (JFC) is constituted in FSNL. The Joint
Forum Committee consists of equal number of representatives from Management & the recognized
Unions, including Heads of Department at Corporate level. A representative of the management is
nominated as the Convener of JFC, while a representative of the Union functionary as the Jt.
Convenor Regular meetings of the Joint Forum Committee are held for discussing and sorting out
the issues of employees. Wherever felt necessary, the Agreements/Memorandum of Settlements are
also signed by & between the management & the recognized unions in the Joint Forum Committee's
meetings.

Mutual discussions across the table in the Joint Forum Commitiee's meetings, results in analysis &
finding best solutions to various problems in a congenial atmosphere. Workers' Participation in
Management is a regular & well-established phenomenon in FSNL.

Works Committee, consisting of representatives from management and members nominated by
recognized Unions, are also constituted at Unit level to discuss & sort out day-to-day problems as
well as matters of the employees’ interest, so that smooth functioning of units could be ensured with
dedicated and joint efforts of the workmen and the unit management.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

There was a two-day strike in the company during the year 2024-25.



CITIZEN CHARTER

FSNL has formulated a Citizen's Charter by adopting the Seven Step Module, representing a
systematic effort to focus on the commitment of the Organization towards its Citizens/Clients in
respect of Standard of Services, Information, Choice and Consultation, Non-discrimination and
Accessibility, Grievances Redressal, Courtesy and Value for money, including expectation of the
Organization from the Citizen/Client for fulfilling the commitment of the Organization. The company
has adopted Grievance Redressal mechanism, which forms part of Board approved Citizen's Charter,
as detailed below: -

(A) PUBLIC GRIEVANCE REDRESSAL

A 3-Tier Grievance Redressal Machinery has been formulated by FSNL for redressal of Public
Grievances.

A Grievance Box has been kept at the reception counter of the Units/Corporate Office for easy
accessibility of these boxes to the Public.

For smooth redressal of one's grievance, anyone from Public could approach FSNL under 3 stages
beginning with its Public Grievance Officer, then the Unit Head/HOD of Operations at Corporate
Office & P&A Head at Corporate Office. At each stage he is responded within a stipulated time
schedule. In the event the aggrieved person is not satisfied with the reply at any stage, he can make
his appeal fo the Managing Director.

The MD, after examining the actions taken by the authorities at the above 3 stages, would analyze
the grievances & communicate his decision to the concerned complainant within 15 days of the
receipt of the appeal.

Online grievances received through CPGRAM System of Ministry are also responded & cleared
online within the stipulated time schedule.

The summary of grievances received and disposed off during the financial year 2024-25 is as below:

No. of Grievance | No. of Grievances | No. of Grievance | No. of Grievances
Brought Forward Received Disposed Off Pending
Nil 6 B Nil

(B) STAFF GRIEVANCE REDRESSAL

For Staff Grievance also, a 3-Tier Grievance Redressal machinery is in vogue. The staff grievances,
if any, are normally resolved at the unit level. Such grievances which need intervention of Corporate
management, are taken up by the Unions with the Management at the Joint Forum Committee's
meetings and the grievances are resolved across the table.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

In accordance with Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women Employees at Workplace
{Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act 2013, we are committed to provide a safe and conducive
work environment to our employees. A Complaints Committee is also in place to deal with complaints,




if any, of the women employees (including permanent, trainee, contractual/ outsourced, eic.) of the
company.

During the financial year one complaint were received under the Act, representation in tabular form is
given as below:

Sl. No. {No. of complaints| No. of | Total no. of | No. of | No. of
brought forward| complaints complaints | complaints complaints
from the previous| received disposed  off | pending during
year during the during the year | the year

year
(1) (2) (3) 4) =(2) + (3) )] (6
1 0 1 1 1 0

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY INITIATIVE

The security audit of FSNL applications—including FAST, CAMMS, Executive Performance
Management System, Employee Self-Service Portal, Vendor Bill Tracking System, and Annual
Property Return System—has been successfully completed by a CERT-in empaneled agency.

FSNL has successfully upgraded its existing high-speed internet leased line, bandwidth to 500 MBPS
at the Corporate Office and 50 MBPS at each unit.

New email services, Zoho Mail, have been successfully implemented in FSNL Private Limited

The FSNL official website has been successfully migrated from the “fsnl.nic.in” domain to “fsnl.co.in.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

FSNL has filed an appeal no. MAT 244/2019 dated 15.02.2019 with the Divisional Bench of Hon'ble
Calcutta High Court to challenge the Order Passed by the single bench of Calcutta High Court under
writ petition no. 33074 (W) of 2013 wherein the single bench has quashed the nomination policy for
the award of work on a nomination basis to FSNL.

The Divisional Bench of Hon'ble Calcutta High Court vide order dated 01.04.2019 has stayed the
order of Single Bench of Calcutta High Court in the writ petition no. 33074 (W) of 2013. The existing
system of awarding work to FSNL on a nomination basis shall continue till the disposal of the Appeal.
Accordingly, all existing Work contracts awarded to FSNL on a nomination basis are under judicial
review. The court has ruled that under the new management, FSNL will no longer receive preferential
treatment for processing scrap from Steel Authority of India Limited (SAIL). FSNL will now need to
compete in the open market for scrap processing work from SAIL.

OFFICIAL LANGUAGE POLICY

All the directives issued by the Government from time to time regard to implementation of Official
Language Policy are being strictly adhered. FSNL is dedicated towards contribution in the area of
implementation of Official Language policy and continuous efforts are being made towards promotion
of progressive use of Hindi.

Employees are constantly motivated to carry out their official jobs in Hindi. With an objective to create
awareness & interest among the employees for the use of Hindi various competitions from time to
time are being organized and winners of these competitions are also being awarded. Further, 20
employees of FSNL have also bagged the Rajbhasha Excellence Award.
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The tenth issue of "DARPAN”, an in-house magazine. FSNL employees were paid honorarium for
their articles published in "Darpan” our in-house journal.

Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited has been awarded with “Rajbhasha Agraganya” first prize by Town
Official Language Implementation Committee, Bhilai-Durg.

During the year various competition in Official Language were organized for the employees of Town
Official Language Implementation Committee, Bhiali-Durg. Apart various competitions on the Hindi
handwriting/Hindi Quiz/Hindi speech/ Hindi debate were organized and National level competitions
were also organized for the college students.

PARTICULLARS OF EMPLOYEES:

The Statement showing the names and other particulars of the employees of the company as
required under Rule 5 (2 &3) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not required to be furnished since none of the employees of the company
has received remuneration in excess of the remuneration mentioned in the above-mentioned Rule 5
(2) during the financial year 2024-25.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

DIRECTORS:

The Board of Directors of the Company consists of Shri Toshihiro Fujiwara (DIN: 10903855) as
Chairman and Non-Executive Director, Shri Kazuhiro Hasumi (DIN: 10140115) as Non-Executive
Director, Shri Katsufumi Ohtsuki (DIN: 05309896) as Non-Executive Director, and Shri Yukihiro
Momose (DIN: 10809033) as Executive Director, appointed with effect from 21.01.2025.

Shri Manobendra Ghoshal (DIN: 09762368) as Chairman and Managing Director, Smt. Bhanu Kumar
(DIN: 7982360) as nominee Director of MSTC Limited, Shri Ashwini Kumar (DIN- 07598523) as
Government Nominee Director has resighed from the Board with effect from 21.01.2025.

BRIEF INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS APPOINTED DURING FY 2024-25.

Shri Toshihiro Fujiwara

Shri Toshihiro Fujiwara (DIN: 10903855) was appointed as a Non-Executive Director and
Chairperson of the Company with effect from 21.01.2025.

He has obtained his LL.B. degree from Doshisha University, Japan

Shri Kazuhiro Hasumi

Shri Kazuhiro Hasumi (DIN:- 10140115) was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company
with effect from 21.01.2025. He also serves as the Managing Director of Konoike India Private
Limited and is a Director in Joshi Konoike Transport and Infrastructure Private Limited.

He has obtained his BBA Chiba University of Commerce.

Shri Katsufumi Ohtsuki

Shri Katsufumi Ohtsuki (DIN- 05309896) as Non-Executive Director the Company with effect from
21.01.2025.
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He holds an MBA from Vanderbilt University, USA, and an LL.B. from Tohoku University, Japan.
Shri Yukihiro Momose

Shri Yukihiro Momose (DIN- 10909033) as Executive Director the Company with effect from
21.01.2025.

He has pursued Economics Studies at Nishogakusha University, Japan {partially completed)
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL.:

The details of the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as on the date of this report are as
follows;

S.No. | KMP Designation
1 Shri Nishant Agrawal Company Secretary
2. Shri Sumit Kumar Roy Chief Financial Officer

STATEMENT OF INDEPENDENCE OF DIRECTOR.

Following the privatization of Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited (FSNL), the requirement for the Statement of
Independence of Director under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 is no longer applicable.
The Independent Directors who were previously appointed have duly submitted their statements of
independence in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and have
registered themselves with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA), Manesar, as per Rule 8 of
the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Ruies, 2014. With the change in
ownership and management post-privatization, the provisions related to Independent Directors are no
longer required under the new corporate structure.

AUDITORS:

In pursuance of the powers conferred by Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Section
129(4) of the Companies Act,2013, the Comptroller & Auditor General of India appointed M/s V Rawal
& Co., Chartered Accountants as the Statutory Auditor of the Company for the period under review.

The Statutory Auditors’ Report on the Accounts of the Company for the financial year ended on 31%
March 2024 is placed at Annexure VI and forms part of this report.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

According to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the
Companies (Appoiniment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014 of the Companies
Act, 2013, M/s IG & Associates a Practicing Company Secretaries were appointed to undertake the
Secretarial Audit for a period of three financial year commencing from 2023.

The Secretarial Audit Report is placed at Annexure IV and forms part of this report.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

M/s. Arindam & Associates, Cost Accountants, Raipur, performs the duties of Internal Auditors of the

Company for all the units and corporate office of FSNL during the financial year 2023-24, 2024-25,
and 2025-26.
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DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act,
2013 based on the certification received from the operating management of the company:

ajThat in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b)That your directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently, and
made judgment and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the company for
that period;

c)That your directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of your
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d)That your directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e)That your directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adeguate and operating effectively.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in form MGT- 9 is annexed herewith as
“Annexure V".

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Shri Adya Prasad Pandey (DIN: 09347851), Independent Director, resigned from the Board with
effect from 01.11.2024. Consequently, the Audit Committee and the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee were dissolved due fo the absence of an Independent Director, and their functions were
undertaken by the Board of Directors of FSNL. Subsequently, after the transfer of management and
shares from MSTC to Konoike Transport Company Limited on 21.01.2025, the Committees stood
fully dissolved.

The CSR Committee was dissolved on 05.11.2024 following the resignation of Shri Adya Prasad
Pandey (DIN: 09347851), Independent Director. Subsequently, upon the induction of Shri Toshihiro
Fujiwara (DIN: 10903855) and Shri Kazuhiro Hasumi (DIN: 10140115} on 21.01.2025, the Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee was reconstituted with two members.

Following the 100% Strategic Disinvestment of Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited (FSNL), only one
Committee is presently prevailing, namely the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee. The
disinvestment concluded in January 2025 with the sale of 100% equity to Japan’s Konoike Transport
Co., Ltd. for €320 crore. The process, approved in September 2024, resulted in the transfer of FSNL's
management control to Konoike, and a new Board led by the strategic partner has since taken over.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

A detail of the Audit Committee is mentioned under “Annexure II" of this report.

CSR MONITORING COMMITTEE

A detail of the CSR Monitoring Committee is mentioned under “Annexure II” of this report.

The CSR Policy of the company is available on the website of the company at www.fsnl.nic.in. The
Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed herewith as "Annexure lil”.
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
(Formerly known as Remuneration Committee)

A detail of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is mentioned under “Annexure 1I* of this
report.

Prior to privatization, Non-official (Independent) Directors were paid a sitting fee of Rs. 15,000 for
attending Board and Committee meeting. Government Nominee and other Non-Executive Directors
were not entitied to any remuneration or siiting fees. However, post-privatization of (FSNL), the
requirement for Independent Directors no longer applies, and accordingly, no sitting fees or
remuneration is being paid to Independent Directors.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS.

The company has an efficient and sound system of internal control to monitor the activities of the
company to achieve the business objectives with accuracy, clarity and transparency of financial
reporting. Present internal confrol ensures statutory compliance with rules, laws and regulations and
with the laid down policies and procedures of the Company.

To ensure independence to the internal control system, internal audit functions emphasizing
transparency in the system and therefore, internal audit of the company is entrusted to independent
external firms of Chartered Accountants. The reports of the internal audit are periodicaily submitted to
the management and Audit Committee for improvement, appraisal and remedial measures, if any.
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy to identify and evaluate business risks
associated with the operations and other activities of the Company and formulated risk mitigations
strategies.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to MSTC Limited (Holding Company), the Directors and Key Manageria! Personnel (KMP)
are the related party as defined under section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013.

And, there have been no materially significant related party transactions between the Company and
the Directors, the management, the holding company or the relatives. Suitable disclosures as
required by the Ind AS 24 have been made in note no. 38 in the notes to the financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Separate report on Corporate Governance and Management Discussions and Analysis are attached
herewith as Annexure-ll and forms part of this Annual report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of the Board Report.

14



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board records sincere support received from its valued customers i.e. SAIL Steel Plants, RINL,
MIDHANI and NMDC Steel Limited. Board also expresses gratitude to Konoike Transport Company
Ltd., Japan our holding Company.

The Board of Directors appreciates the contribution of all the employees at all levels towards the
attainment of Company’s objectives.
For and on behalf of Board of Directors

4L 75 oz
i/ A2 T

Place: Bhilai Toshihiro Fujiwara
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FORM AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
‘ (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiaries/ Associates
Companies/Joint Ventures

PART “A”: Subsidiaries: Nil
(Information in respect of each Subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)
1. SI No.
2. Name of the Subsidiary
3. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company’s reporting
period
4. Reporting currency and exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant financial year in the
case of Foreign Subsidiaries.
5. Share Capital
6. Reserve and Surplus
7. Total Asset
8. Total Liabilities
9. Investments
10. Turnover
11. Profit before Taxation
12. Provision for Taxation
13. Profit after Taxation
14. Proposed Dividend
15. % of Share holding

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year.

PART “B”: Associates And Joint Ventures: Nil
Statement pursuant to section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associates
Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of Associates/ Joint Ventures Name 1 Name 2 Name 3

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

2.Shares of Associates/Joint Ventures held by
the Company on the year end

Amounts of investments
in Associates/Joint Venture

Extend of holding %

3. Description of how there is significant
influence

4.Reason why the Associates/Joint Venture is
not consolidated

5.Networth attributable to shareholding as per
latest audited Balance Sheet

6.Profit/Loss for the year

1.Considered in Consolidation

2.Not Considered in Consolidation

1. Names of Associates or Joint Ventures which are yet to commence operations

2. Names of Associates or Joint Venture which have been liquidated or sold during the year.

NOTE: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be certified.
For and on behalf of Board of Directors

)%/j’ /(}( fo\

Place: Bhilai Toshlh o Fujiwara
Date: 10.07.2025 Chairman and Director
DIN: 10903855
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Annexure ‘A’
Particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
FORM NO. AOC-2
(Pursuant to Clause (h) of Sub-Section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) for disclosure of particulars of
contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-
section(1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013

Form for disclosure of particulars of Contracts/Arrangement entered into by the Company with
Related Parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of Contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

(a) (b) c) (d)Salient (e) (f) Date(s) | (g) (h) Date

Name(s) of | Nature Duration | terms of | Justification | of Amount | on which

the of of Contracts/ | for entering | approval paid as| the

Related Contract | Contracts | Arrangeme | into such | by the | advance, | Special

Party and | s/Arran | /Arrange | nts/Transa | Contracts/A | Board if any Resolutio

nature of | gements | ments/Tr | ctions rrangements n was

relationsh | /Transa | ansaction | including /Transactio passed in

ip ctions s the value, if | ns General

any Meeting
as
required
under
first
proviso to
section
188(h).
NIL

Details of material Contracts/Arrangements/Transactions at arm’s length basis

(a) Name(s) of | (b) Nature | (c) Duration | d) Salient (f) Date(s) of (g) Amount paid

the related of of terms of approval by the | as advance, if

party and Contracts/ | Contracts/A | Contracts/Arra | Board any

nature of Arrangeme | rrangements | ngements/Tran

relationship nts/Transa | /Transactio | sactions

ctions ns including the
value, if any
For and on behalf of Board of Directors
» Y
PAC/T 1R Jen
Place: Bhilai Toshihiro Fujiwara
Date: 10.07.2025 Chairman and Director

DIN: 10903855
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ANNEXURE — 1 TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGOING ETC:

Information on conservation of Energy, Technology absorption, Foreign Exchange earnings
and outgo required to be disclosed under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are provided hereunder:

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

M

The steps taken or impact on
conservation of energy:

(i)

The steps faken by the
Company for utilising alternate
sources of energy.

(i)

The capital investment on
energy conservation equipment:

As per the directive of Government of India, we
have switched over to installing LED lights from
fraditional lights in Corporate Office, Bhilai. This
has reduced the power consumption by 50 %.

With the help of 5 KVA& 10 KVA capacity Sofar
Power Plant was installed, whereby, with the
enhanced  solar  power  generation, in
2024-25 — 10568 KVA of Solar energy was
utilized from the solar energy power generated
from reooftop solar power plant installed at
Corporate Office, Bhifal.

POWER CONSUMPTION:

2024-2025

CURRENT YEAR

PREVIOUS YEAR
2023-2024

UNITS(KWH) | Total Cost

Rs. Per
Unit

Rs. Per Total Cost

Unit

UNITS(KWH)

Electricity

1230288 9008516

7.27 11286038.19 9258012 7.20

CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF PRODUCTION:

Standards (if any)

Previous Year
2023-2024

Current Year
2024-2025

Product: Iron &
Steel Scrap

NA.

1.83 1.82
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(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

(i)

(ii)

(i

The efforts made towards
technology absorption.

The benefits derived like
product improvement, cost

reduction, product
development or  import
substitution.

In case of Iimported

technology (imported during
the last three vyears
reckoned from beginning of
the financial year)

a) The details of
technology imported.

b} The year of import.

c) Whether the
technology been fully
absorbed.

d) If not fully absorbed,
areas where
absorption has not
taken place & the
reason thereof.

Updation of technology is a continuous process.
Efforts are continuously made to develop new

avenues for
Customers.

improved services required by

Process & Technology.

(i)

(vi)

FSNL has taken up one R&D project with
CSIR-NML, Jamshedpur for the development of
process technology for converting waste
sludge, generated during Iron & Steel making,
into Briguettes. 2nd phase plant trials were
initiated to establish the results,

Development of design guidelines and
specification for utilisation of Steel Slag in rural
road construction.

Upgraded the operation process by introducing
hydraulic excavator of 35 Ton with magnet
attachment in equipment flit against obsolete
model rope magnet crane used for loading.
FSNL has done several modifications in
existing Separators and Screening Units to get
better output and also to meet customer's
reguirement.

To get better output or to increase production
FSNL has a practice of replacement of old and
probiematic equipment and old sub-assemblies
with new, in order to increase machine's
availability introduced in equipment flit in capax
FSNL is planning to implement upgradation of
scrap processing technology by implementation
of Steel Buster against Balling operation &
Smook control technology during lancing to
improve safety and environment.

NIL
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(iv) | The expenditure incurred on NIL
Research and Development.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The total foreign exchange earnings and outgo was Nil during the year 2024-25. The total
foreign exchange earnings and outgo was Nil during the year 2023-24.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
. e f )
A—f-" /& e
W</ N
Place: Bhilai Toshihiro Fujiwara

Date: 10.07.2025 Chairman and Director
DIN: 10903855
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT :

Industry Structure and Development:

FSNL Private Limited (formerly Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited; renamed on 29.04.2025)
operates in India’s in-plant metal scrap recovery, slag handling, and allied logistics segment
serving integrated and secondary steel producers.

The industry’s origins trace to 1857 when M/s Heckett Engineering Co. (Harsco, USA)
commenced mechanized scrap recovery at TISCO, later expanding to Rourkela (1962) and
Burnpur (1964).

In response to the Foreign Exchange Regulation Act, 1874, a domestic structure was
pursued, culminating in the incorporation of Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited on 28.03.1979 in
collaboration with MSTC Ltd. and Harsco Inc. (60:40).

FSNL was initially linked to SAIL and delinked in 1982; in 2002, Harsco's 40% stake was
acquired by MSTC, making FSNL a wholly owned subsidiary of MSTC Ltd.

Pursuant to a competitive disinvestment, a Share Purchase Agreement dated 24.10.2024
led to fransfer of 100% shareholding from MSTC Lid. to Konoike Transport Co., Lid., Japan,
completed per Board approval on 21.01.2025.

“Konoike Transport Co., Ltd,, founded in 1880 and headquartered in Osaka, Japan, is a
diversified logistics company engaged in steel, food, medical, airport, and international
freight services. If operates under the 'Integrated Innovation’ model and is pursuing long-
term growth through its KONOIKE 2030 Vision with a strong focus on sustainability.”

The sector continues to be driven by domestic steel capacity additions, higher scrap
utilization, operationa! outsourcing, and stronger EHS and circularity nerms—supporting
steady demand for specialized scrap management services.

FSNL has implemented an Integrated Management System (IMS) covering 1SO 9001:2015,

SO 14001:2015, and 1SO 45001:2018 at its Corporate Office and various Steel Plant project
sites across the country. The certification is valid up to 18.03.2028

Expansion/ New projects:

Expansion in Existing Customer Steel Plant

FSNL Private Limited has commenced cperaiions at its new Nagarnar Unit, following the
award of a long-term contract from NMDC Integrated Steel Plant, Nagarnar, for handling and
processing of iron & steel slag and scrap. With this addition, FSNL is well positioned fo
further strengthen its services to Steel Plants.

The Company is also pursuing diversification in the following areas:
= Value addition and utilization of SMS Slag
o Operation and maintenance of various shops inside Steel Plants

o Crushing and screening of lron Cre in Mines
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« Overburden removal and coal excavation in open cast Coal Mines

» Manufacturing of soil conditioner from SMS Slag

« BOQO projects for MRP and SSP Plants

« BOO basis projects for Briquette and Micro Pellet Plants
Further, FSNL has received an LOl from JSW Dolvi for Installation, Operation &
Maintenance of Metal Recovery Plant and Slag to Sand Plant on BOO basis for 15 years.

The Contract Agreement is 1o be signed shorly.

FSNL is geared up to handle increasing slag and scrap from expanding Steel Plants through
recovery, processing, and fleet modernization.

Strenath and Weakness:

Strenath

» Core competence in metal scrap recovery bulk material handling.

» Disciplined & skilled workforce with good work culture.,

» Highest market shares in its core line of business.

» Trust of regulatory statutory body customer being a PSU company.

» History of very good relationship with the customer.

» Ability to induct and assimilate new technologies as per requirement/situation.

» Availability of heavy equipmenis which are also useful in other sectors i.e. mines, coal,
metals etc.

Weakness

* [nconsistent requirement / demand of customer.

» Absence of long term assured business.

o Business cycle effect and volatility in the steel sector.

Outlook :

Inadequate utilization of large volume of unaccountable/non-segregated scrap is resulfing in
depletion of natural rescurces and occupying precious space in the form of huge dump at

many Steel Plants viz. Bhilai Steel Plant and Bokaro Steel Plant.

FSNL has ample opportunities to convert these huge volumes of unrecovered metal scrap
into secondary raw materials for manufacturing of end products.

FSNL has plan for improvement in productivity and efficiency by adopting the following
mechanisms:
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a) Induction of rock breaker attachment for loosening of hard slag in slag pit in place of
loosening the hard slag by conventional method of balling with the help of a magnet
crane.

b) Induction of shear attachment for further processing of mill rejects at WRM mills in place
of conventional processing by manual gas cutting for faster and safe processing of mill
rejects.

Opportunities and threats:

Opportunities:

o Capacity expansion of customer steel plant

« Venture in other sectors and diversification of business to similar area like mines, coal,
metal etc.

Threats:

e Reduction of metallic in input to FSNL with modernization of steel plants and introduction
of advanced technology.

» Compulsion of working in hazardous and adverse working conditions.
e Demand of services by the customers within stringent time schedule.

Risks & Concerns:

1) The area of concern for FSNL is the reduction in quantity of scrap due to modernization of
steel making technology and operational discipline.

2) Single line of business and FSNL's performance is directly related to the business cycle
of Steel industry.

3) undercutting by small size entities to fetch the similar nature of work.

4) Due to increase in cost of various input material like HSD, consumables, equipment,
spares and wages, the operational cost has increased significantly, whereas service
charge rates of SAIL Steel Plants have not been revised to compensate the inflation.

5) All existing Work contracts awarded to FSNL on a nomination basis are under judicial
review. The court has ruled that under the new management, FSNL will no longer receive
preferential treatment for processing scrap from Steel Authority of India Limited (SAIL).
FSNL will now need to compete in the open market for scrap processing work from SAIL

SEGMENT-WISE OR PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE.

During the year the company was engaged in the business of scrap recovery and allied jobs
for various steel plants in India which was as per IndAS 108 is considered the reportable
business segment. Beside scrap recovery and allied jobs, the company has not rendered
any other services during the year under review. The geographical segmentation is not
relevant, as the company has no business operation outside india.

Identification of segments:
The Company's operating business are organized and managed separately according to the

nature of products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic
business unit that offers different products and serves different markets. The analysis of
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geographical segments is based on the areas in which major operating divisions of the
Company operate.

Inter segment transfers:.

The company generally accounts for intersegments sales and transfers as if the sales or
transfers were to third parties at current market costs.

Unallocated items:

The Corporate and other segments include general corporate income and expense items
which are not allocated to any business segment.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FSNL achieved a Total Revenue of ¥ 47673.92 lakhs inclusive of Service charges of ¥
45895.18 lakhs during the Financial Year (FY) 2024-25, an increase of 1.93 % as compared
to the corresponding period of last year (CPLY) of total Revenue of ¥ 46771.77 lakhs
inclusive of Service charges of ¥ 43461.01 lakhs.

During the Financial Year (FY) 2024-25, the Profit before Tax and Profit after Tax were ¥
8455.77 lakhs and % 6296.40 lakhs as compared to the Profit before Tax and Profit after Tax
of the corresponding period of last year (CPLY) of ¥ 8811.70 Lakhs and ¥ 6596.31 Lakhs . a
decreased by 4.04 % and 4.55 % respectively over [ast year. The comparative performance
of major financial parameters during the FYs 2024-25 and 2023-24 is given below:;

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Z lakhs)
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Total Revenue 47673.92 | 46771.77
Revenue from operation 45895.18 | 43461.01
Earnings before depreciation, interest and tax (EBIDTA) 10202.10 | 10541.04
Depreciation 1716.74 | 1698.41
Finance cost 29.59 30.93
Profit / (Loss) before tax (PBT) 8455.77 8811.7
Provision for tax / Income Tax refund and deferred tax 515937 | 2215.39
asset (-)

Profit / (Loss) after tax (PAT) 6296.40 [ ©6596.31
Other Comprehensive Income (333.38) (43.70)
Total Comprehensive Income (+)/loss (-) 5063.02 | 6552.61
Net worth 32001.94 | 25839.24
EBIDTA to Revenue from operation (Operating Profit

Margin) (%) 22.23 24.25
Net Profit Margin (%) 13.21 14.10
Return (PAT) on Net Worth (%) 19.62 2553
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Earnings per share of 210/-each 19.68 20.61
Current ratio 3.30 2.97

HUMAN RESQURCES DEVELOPMENT

In order to enhance the skills & knowledge of the employees at all levels, acquainting them
with the day-to-day developments in the industrial scenario, various Internal & External
training programmes were organized for the employees (Executives as well as Non-
exeacutives) through reputed training institutions, on the basis of the yearly training schedule
prepared and requirements received through various Departmental Heads.

During the year 2024-25, total 467 man-days were ufilized for imparting training to the
employees in the area of enhancement of their skills & managerial capabilities.

SKILL DEVELOPMENT

In compliance with the provisions of Apprenticeship Act, 1961 and in adherence of Gowvt.
Guidelines, we have been engaging Graduate and Trade apprentices in our establishment.
Six units of FSNL located at Rourkela, Burnpur, Bhilai, Bokaro, Vizag and Durgapur are
registered on Apprenticeship Training portal under Minisiry of Skill Development and
Entrepreneurship for deployment of Trade Apprentice. FSNL is also registered on NATS
portal of Board of Apprenticeship Training under Ministry of Education for deployment of
Graduate apprentices.

As per the provisions made under Apprentices Act, 19681, it is obligatory on the part of
enterprises to engage apprentices in a band of 2.5 % to 15% of the manpower strength.
During the financial year 2024-25, total 47 nos of apprentices have been engaged. The
details are indicated hereunder: -

Total Manpower Strength Total No. of apprentices Percentage of Apprentices
as on 01.04.2024 engaged {Graduate & Trade engaged
apprentices) during
01.04.2024 to 31.03.2025

447 47 10.51 %

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The company has an efficient and sound system of internal conire! to monitor the acfivities of
the company to achieve the business ohjectives with accuracy, clarity and transparency of
financial reporting. Present internal control ensures statutory compliance with rules, laws and
regulations and with the laid down policies and procedures of the company.

To ensure independence to the internal control system, internal audit functions emphasizing
fransparency in the system and therefore, internal audit of the company is entrusted to
independent external firms of Chartered Accountants/ Cost Accountants. The reports of the
internal audit are periodically submitted to the management for improvement, appraisal and
remedial measures, if any.

FURTHER DISCLOSURES AS PER CORPORATE GOVERNANCE GUIDELINES:

1. There is no material significant related party transaction that may have potential conflict
with the interest of the company.
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10.

Instances of non-compliance by the company has been observed and duly reported. No
statutory authority has issued any strictures or levied penalty or any matter related to
any guidelines issued by the Government during the last three years.

The Company has formulated a whistle blower policy in line with Government guidelines
duly approved by the board. No person has been denied personal access to Audit
Committee and no one has reported anything under this policy.

The Corporate Governance Guidelines has been complied to the extent applicable to
the Company.

All Presidential guidelines have been complied with by the company for the year and
also during the last three years.

No items of expenditure have been debited in books of accounts which are not for the
purpose of business.

No expenses are incurred which are personal in nature for the Board of Directors and
Senior Management.

. The financial results are available in the website of the company i.e. www.fsnl.co.in

. The company has been privatized following the transfer of 100% shareholding to

Konoike Transport Co., Ltd., Japan, effective from 21.01.2025, marking the completion
of the strategic disinvestment process.

Post-privatization, the name of the company has been changed from Ferro Scrap Nigam
Limited (FSNL) to FSNL Private Limited with effect from 29.04.2025.

Company ldentification Number (CIN)

The CIN of the Company is: U27102CT1979FTC005468

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's
objectives and expectations may be forward looking statements. Actual results. may differ
materially from those expressed or implied which could make a difference to the company’s
operations including continuation of business on nomination basis from the public sector

steel plant
For and on behalf of Board of Directors
7 o b 27
/2 /A
FAS/AN
Place: Bhilai Toshihiro Fujiwara
Date: 10.07.2025 Chairman and Director

DIN: 10903855
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ANNEXURE — Il TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY

The philosophy of the company in relation to corporate governance is o ensure
transparency, disclosures and reporting and to promote ethical conduct throughout the
organization. It recognizes that the Board is accountable to shareholder and each
member of the Board owes his first duty to protect and further the interest of the
Company.

VISION

The Company has a vision to increase its operational horizon by expanding the existing
business to provide better services to its customer and to make the company
competitive,

MISSION

The Mission of the Company is to generate “Wealth from Waste”.

OBJECTIVES

The Company's objective is to remain a market leader in the field of waste recycle
management in the steel industry.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

COMPOSITION :

The Composition of the Board as on 31.03.2025 was consisting of Shri Toshihiro
Fujiwara (DIN: 10903855) as Chairman and Non-Executive Director, Shri Kazuhiro
Hasumi (DIN: 10140115) as Non-Executive Director, Shri Katsufumi Ohtsuki (DIN-
05309896) as Non-Executive Director and Shri Yukihiro Momose (DIN: 10909033) as
Executive Director.

Shri Manobendra Ghoshal (DIN: 09762368) as Chairman and Managing Director, Smt.
Bhanu Kumar (DIN: 7982360) as nominee Director of MSTC Limited, Shri Ashwini
Kumar (DIN- 07598593) as Government Nominee Director has resigned from the Board
w.e.f21.01.2025

None of the Directors on the Board is member in more than Ten (10) committees or acts
as Chairman of more than Five (5) committees across all the companies in which he is a
director. '

BRIEF INFORMATION OF THE NEWLY APPOINTED DIRECTORS.
Shiri Toshihiro Fujiwara

Shri Toshihiro Fujiwara (DIN: 10903855) was appointed as a Non-Executive Director
and Chairperson of the Company with effect from 21.01.2025.
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He has obtained his LL.B. degree from Doshisha University, Japan
Shri Kazuhiro Hasumi

Shri Kazuhiro Hasumi {DIN:- 10140115) was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of
the Company with effect from 21.01.2025. He also serves as the Managing Director of
Konoike India Private Limited and is a Director in Joshi Konoike Transport and
Infrastructure Private Limited.

He has obtained his BBA Chiba University of Commerce.
Shri Katsufumi Ohtsuki

Shri Katsufumi Ohtsuki (DIN- 05309896) as Non-Executive Director the Company with
effect from 21.01.2025.

He holds an MBA from Vanderbilt University, USA, and an LL.B. from Tohoku University,
Japan.

Shri Yukihiro Momose

Shri Yukihiro Momose (DIN- 10908033) as Executive Director the Company with effect
from 21.01.2025.

He has pursued Economics Studies at Nishogakusha University, Japan (partially
completed)

DIRECTORSHIP HELD BY THE DIRECTORS:

Shri Toshihiro Fujiwara (DIN: 10903855) is the Chairman-cum-Director on the Board of
FSNL Private Limited. He does not hold directorship in any other Company.

Shri Kazuhiro Hasumi (DIN: 10140115} is a Director on the Board of FSNL Private
Limited. He also serves as the Managing Director of Konoike India Private Limited and
as a Director in Joshi Konoike Transport and Infrastructure Private Limited.

Shri Katsufumi Ohtsuki (DIN- 05309896) is the Director on the Board of FSNL Private
Limited. He does not hold directorship in any other Company.

Shri Yukihiro Momose (DIN- 10909033) is the Director on the Board of FSNL Private
Limited. He does not hold directorship in any other Company.

REMUNERATION TO THE DIRECTORS

The Independent, Government Nominee and Nominee Director of MSTC Limited do not
have any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company. However,
the Independent Director is paid the sitting fees at a rate fixed by the Board within the
limits as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and daily allowance for attending
the meetings of the Board and Committees of Directors. Presently sitting fee of
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Rs.15,000/- is being paid to the Independent Director for attending each meeting of the
Board and Committees of Directors. '

The Government Nominee and Nominee Director of MSTC Limited are nof entitled to
any remuneration or sitting fee from the Company.

And, as regards the remuneration of the Managing Director, the pay scale of the
Managing Director and terms of appointment are fixed by the Ministry of Steel on
appointment.

After privatization, the pay scale of the Independent Director and the remuneration of the
Managing Director will no longer be determined by the Ministry of Steel. [nstead, these
will be decided in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Board / Committee Meetings and Procedure:

a) Scheduling and selection of Agenda items for Board / Committee Meetings.

) The Meetings are scheduled in consonance with the approval of all the
Directors and by giving appropriate notice after requisite approval of the
Chairman of the Board/Committee or Managing Pirector. The Board of Directors
ratifies rescheduling the time and venue of the meeting and shorter notice (if
any) in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Secretarial Standard. The Detailed agenda, management reports and other
explanatory statements are circulated in advance amongst the members to
facilitate meaningful, informed and focused decisions at the meetings. The
Board also passes Resolution by circulation for the permissible business items.

i) The agenda papers are prepared by the concerned head of the department and
submitted to the Managing Director for obtaining approval. Duly approved
agenda papers are circulated amongst the Board members by the Company
Secretary.

i) Under certain circumstances additional or supplementary item(s) on the agenda
are taken up for discussion with the permission of the Chairman and majority of
Directors including one Independent Director.

b) Compliances:

Each Head of the Department ensures adherence to the provisions of applicable of
laws, rules, guidelines etc. pertaining to their domain.

BOARD MEETING & ATTENDANCE :

During the financial year ended on 31* March 2025, Eight board meetings were held and
the maximum time gap between any two meetings was not more than one hundred and
twenty days.

Details of the Directors attendance at the Board Meetings of the company held in the
financial year 2024-2025.
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Name of Shri Smit. Shri Shri Shri Shri Shri Shri

Director Manobe Bhanu Ashwini Adya Toshihiro | Kazuhiro |Katsufumi | ~Yukihiro
ndra Kumar Kumar Prasad | Fujiwara Hasumi Ohtsuki Momose
Ghoshal (DIN: (DIN: Pandey {DIN:- (DIN:- (DIN:- (DIN:-
{DIN: 07982360) | 07598593} | (DIN:0934 10903855) | 10140118) | 05309896) | 10209033)
09762368) 7851)

205 Board | Attended Altended Attended Attended NA NA NA NA

Meeting held

on 21.05.2024

206" Board | Attended Attended Attended Attended NA NA NA NA

Meeting held

on

09.08.2024

207" Board | Attended Attended Attended Attended NA NA NA NA

Meeting held

on

09.10.2024

208™ Board | Attended Attended Attended N NA NA NA NA

Meeting held

on

05.11.2024

208" Board | Atiended Attended Attended NA NA NA NA NA

Meeting held

on

19.12.2024

210" Board | Altended Aitended Aftended NA NA NA NA NA

Meeting held

on

15.01.2025

211" Board | Attended Attended Attended NA Attended Aftended NA NA

Mesting held

on

21.01.2025

212™ Board NA NA NA NA Attended Attended Attended Attended

Meeting held

an

21.01.2025

Note:-

1. Shri Toshihiro Fujiwara (DIN: 10903855) was appointed as Non-Executive Director
and Chairperson of the Company with effect from 21.01.2025. Shri Kazuhiro Hasumi
(DIN: 10140115) was appointed as Non-Executive Director with effect from
21.01.2025. Shri Katsufumi Ohtsuki (DIN: 05309898) was appointed as Non-
Executive Director with effect from 21.01.2025. Shri Yukihiro Momose (DIN:
10909033) was appointed as Executive Director with effect from 21.01.2025.,

2. Shri Adya Prasad Pandey (DIN: 09347851), Independent Director, resigned from the
Board with effect from 01.11.2024. Further, Shri Manobendra Ghoshal (DIN:
09762368) resigned as Chairman-cum-Managing Director, Smt. Bhanu Kumar (DIN:
07982360) resigned as Nominee Director, and Shri Ashwini Kumar (DIN: 07598593)
resigned as Government Nominee Director with effect from 21.01.2025.

Information placed before the Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors has complete access to information within the Company. The
information inter alia regularly supplied to the Board includes:
¢ Annual operating plans and Budgets and any updates.
Capital Budget, Revenue Budget and any updates.
Periodical physical and financial performance of the company.
Formation / Reconstitution of Board Committees
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Appointment, change in nomination and resignation of Directors and KMP.

Dividend declaration.

Significant changes in accounting policies and internal controls.

Minutes of the Meeting of the Board and other Committees of the Board of the

company.

Periodical details of investment made.

e Disclosure of interest by Directors.

s Any Significant development in Human Resources / Industrial Relations viz wage
agreement, Additional Resource Generation Scheme.

e« The information on legal cases pending in different courts.

e The information on pending cases under fiscal laws such as Service Tax, VAT,
Income Tax etc.

s Action Taken Report.

o Approval of quarterly and annual accounts, analysis of Sundry debtors, Survey of
Assets.

e Pending dues of MSME, statutory dues and salary/ wages of Employees,
Quarterly Statutory Compliance reports.

o Corporate Plan.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS HELD DURING THE LAST THREE YEARS

Type of Date Time Venue Special
Mieeting Resolution
Passed
437 AGM [ 16™ September, 11.30 A.M. | Registered Office, Bhilai, Nil
2022 Chhattisgarh
44™ AGM |05™ September,2023| 11.30 A.M. | Registered Office, Bhilai, Nil
Chhattisgarh
45" AGM [12" September,2024] 11.30 A M. | Registered Office, Bhilai, Nil
Chhattisgarh

Shri Manobendra Ghoshal, Chairman and Managing Director, Shri Ashwini Kumar, Govt.
Director, Smt. Bhanu Kumar, Nominee Director and Shri Adya Prasad Pandey,
independent Director were present at the 45" Annual General Meeting of the Company
held on 12" September 2024,

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Shri Adya Prasad Pandey (DIN: 09347851), Independent Director, resigned from the
Board with effect from 01.11.2024. Consequently, the Audit Committee and the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee were dissolved due to the absence of an
Independent Director, and their functions were undertaken by the Board of Directors of
FSNL. Subsequently, after the transfer of management and shares from MSTC to
Konoike Transport Company Limited on 21.01.2025, the Audit and Nomination &
Remuneration Committees stood fully dissolved.

The CSR Committee was dissolved on 05.11.2024 following the resignation of Shri Adya
Prasad Pandey (DIN: 09347851), Independent Director and their functions were
undertaken by the Board of Directors of FSNL. Subsequently, upon the induction of Shri
Toshihiro Fujiwara (DIN: 10903855) and Shri Kazuhiro Hasumi (DIN: 10140115) on
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21.01.2025, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was reconstituted with two
members.

Following the 100% Strategic Disinvestment of Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited (FSNL), only
one Committee is presently prevailing, namely the Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) Committee. The disinvestment concluded in 21.01.2025 with the sale of 100%
equity to Japan’s Konoike Transport Co., Ltd. for 320 crore. The process, approved in
September 2024, resulted in the transfer of FSNL's management control to Konoike, and
a new Board led by the strategic partner has since taken over.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on 05.11.2024, dissolved the
Audit Committee due to the absence of an Independent Director, with its functions being
undertaken by the Board of Directors of FSNL. Subsequently, after the transfer of
management and shares from MSTC to Konoike Transport Company Limited on
21.01.2025, Audit Committee stood fully dissolved.

The composition of the Audit Committee during the financial year 2024-2025 is given
below:

Name of Member Designation Category

Shri Adya Prasad Pandey Chairman Independent Non-Executive
(DIN:08347851) Director

Upto 01.11.2024

Smt. Bhanu Kumar Member Nominee Director
(DIN: 07982360)

Shri Ashwini Kumar Member Non-Executive Director
(DIN- 07598593)

Subsequently, after the transfer of management and shares from MSTC to Konoike
Transport Company Limited on 21.01.2025, Audit Committee stood fully dissolved.

The member of the Audit Committee is financially literate and possesses expertise in
accounting and financial management. The Company Secretary serves as the Secretary
to the Audit Committee. The terms of reference of the Committee are in line with the
DPE Guidelines issued on Corporate Governance. During the financial year ended on
31° March, 2025, four meetings of the Audit Committee were held. The following table
gives details of meeting and attendance of the Audit Committee Members:

Name of Director Shri Adya Smt. Bhanu Shri Ashwini Kumar
Prasad Pandey Kumar (DIN- 07598593)
(DIN: 08365082} | (DIN: 07982360)
Upto 01.11.2024
| 54™ Meeting heid on Attended Attended Attended
21.05.2024 '
| 55™ Meeting held on Attended Attended Attended
09.08.2024
56" Meeting held on Attended Atiended Attended
09.10.2024
57" Meeting held on NA Attended Attended
05.11.2024

The Audit Committee had not complied the criteria regarding the minimum number of
Independent Directors as laid down under the Guidelines issued by Department of
Public Enterprise as well as the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.




Note: - The Audit Committee was dissolved on 05.11.2024 following the resignation of
Shri Adya Prasad Pandey (DIN: 08347851), Independent Director. In the absence of an
Independent Director, the Board of Directors of FSNL, at its meeting held on the same
date, resolved that the functions of the Audit Committee would be undertaken by the
Board. Subsequently, upon the fransfer of management and shares from MSTC to
Konoike Transport Company Limited on 21.01.2025, Audit Committee stood fully
dissolved. , Smt. Bhanu Kumar (DIN: 7882360) as nominee Director of MSTC Limited,
Shri Ashwini Kumar {DIN- 07598593} as Government Nominee Director has resigned
w.ef21.01.2025

CSR MONITORING COMMITTEE:

The CSR Committee was dissolved on 05.11.2024 following the resignation of Shri Adya
Prasad Pandey (DIN: 09347851), Independent Director. In the absence of an
independent Director, the Board of Directors of FSNL ssubsequently, upon the induction
of Shri Toshihiro Fujiwara (DIN: 10903855) and Shri Kazuhirc Hasumi (DIN: 10140115)
on 21.01.2025, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was reconstituted with
two members. Shri Ashwini Kumar (DIN- 07598593) as Government Nominee Director
has resigned w.e.f 21.01.2025

The composition of the CSR Monitoring Committee during the financial year 2024-2025
is given below:

Name of Member Designation Category

Shri  Adya Prasad Chairman Independent Non-Executive
Pandey Director
(DIN:09347851)

Upto 01.11.2024

Smt. Bhanu Kumar Member Nominee Director
(DIN: 07982360) _

Shri Ashwini Kumar Member Neon-Executive Director
(DIN:07588593)

Shri Toshihiro Fujiwara Member Neon-Executive Director
(DIN; 10903855)

(w.e.f21.01.2025)

Shri Kazuhiro Hasumi Member Non-Executive Director
(DIN: 10140115)

(w.e.f 21.01.2025)

During the financial year ended on 31st March 2025, one meetings of the CSR
Monitoring Committee were held as detailed below:

Name of | Shri Adya Smit. Bhanu | Shri Ashwini | Shri Toshihirc | Shri Kazuhiro
Director Prasad Kumar Kumar Fujiwara Hasumi (DIN:
Pandey (DIN: {DIN- (DIN: 10140115)
(DIN: 07982380) 07598593) 10903855) (w.ef
08365082) {welf 21.01.2025)
Upto 21.01.2025)
01.11.2024
34" Meeting Attended Attended Aftended NA NA
held onh
08.08.2024
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Based on the recommendation of the CSR Monitoring Committee, the Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy {CSR Policy) has been adopted by the Company.

The CSR Policy of the company is available on the website of the company at
https:/iwww.fsnl.co.in/ at web link https:/fwww fsnl.co.in/pdf/CSR_Policy.pdf

The terms of reference of the CSR Monitoring Committee were framed in line with the
applicable DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance. However, upon privatization of
FSNL with effect from 21.01.2025, the applicability of DPE Guidelines ceased, and
accordingly, the requirement to follow the said Guidelines no longer apply.

Note: - Following the resignation of Shri Adya Prasad Pandey (DIN: 09347851),
Independent Director, the CSR Committee stood dissolved In the absence of an
Independent Director, the Board of Directors of FSNL. Subsequently, upon the induction
of Shri Toshihiro Fujiwara (DIN: 10803855) and Shri Kazuhiro Hasumi (DIN: 10140115)
on 21.01.2025, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was reconstituted with
two members. .

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
(Formerly known as Remuneration Committee)

The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on 05.11.2024, dissolved the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee due to the absence of an Independent
Director, with its functions being undertaken by the Board of Directors of FSNL.
Subsequently, after the transfer of management and shares from MSTC to Konoike
Transport Company Limited on 21.01.2025, the NRC Committee stoed fully dissolved.

The composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee during the financial year
2024-2025 is given below:

Name of Member Designation Category

Shri Adya Prasad Pandey Chairman Independent Non-Executive
(PIN:09347851) Director

Upto 01.11.2024

Smt. Bhanu Kumar Member Nominee Director
(DIN: 07982360)

Shri Ashwini Kumar Member Non-Executive Director
(DIN- 07598593)

During the financial year ended on 31st March 2025, two meeting of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee were held as detailed below:

Name of Director Shri Adya Prasad | Smt. Bhanu Kumar | Shri Ashwini Kumar
Pandey {DIN: 07982360) (DIN- 07598593)
{DIN: 08365082)
29™ Meeting held on Attended Attended Attended
08.08.2024
30™ Meeting held on Attended Attended Attended
09.10.2024
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The Remuneration Committee had not complied the criteria regarding the minimum
number of Independent Directors as laid down under the Guidelines issued by
Department of Public Enterprise as well as the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Note: - The Remuneration Committee was dissolved on 05.11.2024 following the
resignation of Shri Adya Prasad Pandey (DIN: 09347851}, Independent Director. In the
absence of an Independent Director, the Board of Directors of FSNL, at its meeting held
on the same date, resolved that the functions of the Remuneration Committee would be
undertaken by the Board. Subsequently, upon the transfer of management and shares
from MSTC to Konoike Transport Company Limited on 21.01.2025, the NRC Committee
stood fully dissolved. Shri Ashwini Kumar (DIN- 07598593) as Government Nominee
Director has resigned w.e.f 21.01.2025

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

As there was only one Independent Non-Executive Director on the Board, the separate
meeting of Independent Directors did not take place during FY 2024-25. The said
Director resigned w.e.f. 01.11.2024. Further, after privatization of the Company w.e.f.
21.01.2025, the requirement for appointment of an Independent Director under the
Companies Act, 2013 ceased to be applicable.

Compliance with Accounting Standards:

Financial statements have been prepared in accordance with relevant Accounting
Standard issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The company has an efficient system of internal control for achieving the business
objectives of the company which inter-alia includes accuracy and promptness of financial
reporting. Efficiency of operations, compliance with the laid down policies and
procedures and compliance with law and regulations.

To ensure independence to the internal audit function emphasizing transparency in the
systems and internal controls, the internal audit of the company is entrusted to
independent external firms of Chartered Accountants. The reports of Internal Audit are
periodically submitted to the management for appraisal, improvement and remedial
measures, if any.

CODE OF CONDUCT:

The Company had formulated a comprehensive Model Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics for Board Members and Senior Management Personnel in line with the Guidelines
on Corporate Governance issued by the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE). The
Code was circulated to all Directors and Senior Management Members. All Board
Members and designated Senior Management Personnel affirmed compliance with the
Code, and a declaration to this effect, signed by the Chairman and Director, is provided
at the end of this Report.
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However, pursuant to the strategic disinvestment and consequent privatization of the
Company with effect from 21.01.2025, the requirement to follow DPE Guidelines,
including the Model Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, has ceased to apply.

DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT

In compliance with Corporate Governance Guidelines, the Board Members and
the Senior Management Personnel have confirmed compliance with the MODEL
CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS for the Financial Year 2024-25.

ML I /f/t‘»; g
PASIT A Jin
Place: Bhilai Toshihiro Fujiwara

Date: 10.07.2025 Chairman and Director
DIN: 10903855
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IG & Associates ; ISHA GARG

Company Secretaries B.Sc, FCS, MBA

Office: 608-A, The One, 5, R.N.T. Marg, Indore-452001{M.P.)
E-mail: igassociatescs@gmail.com, Mob: 09009403008

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE

To,

The Members of

FSNL Private Limited

(Formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)
Registered Office: FSNL Bhawan,

Equipment Chowk Central Avenue,

Bhilai, Durg, Dist: Durg, Chattisgarh, India, 490001
(CIN:U27102CT1979FTC005468

I, have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by FSNL Prévate Limited
(Formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited) (CIN:U27102CT1979FTC005468) (hereinafter called
“the Company” or “FSNL”) for the year ended 31st March, 2025, as stipulated in Guidelines on
Corporate Governance (“the guidelines”) for Central Public Sector Enterprises (CPEs) issued, by the
Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Government of India (“DPE Guidelines”).

1.

The compliance of conditions of corp%;rate governance is the responsibility of the management.
My examination has been limited to review of procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by
the Company, for ensuring the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the company.

In my opinion and the best of my information and according to the explanation given to me, I
certify that during the financial year ended 31st March, 2025, the Gompany has complied with
applicable conditions of Corporate Law/Corporate Governance as stipulated.

I further state that Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited {a wholly owned subsidiary of MSTC Ltd) has
successfully concluded with the transfer of 100% shares of Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited by MSTC
to Konoike Transpoit Co. Ltd. (Japanese corporation listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange) on
dated 21.01.2025.

I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the further viability of the
company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the company. 5

FORI G & ASSOCIATES

COMPANY SECRETARIES

F.R. NO.: I2013MP1054000
ok

0N

(PROPRIETOR) W7
M. NO: FCS 9955 CP: 12184
PEER REVIEW NO.: 914/2020

RG

l//

UDIN: FO09955G000753214
PLACE: BHILAI
DATE : 10.07.2025
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ANNEXURE — Il TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BOARD’S
REPORT FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25

. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.
VISION

In alignment with vision of the company, FSNL, through its CSR initiatives, will continue to enhance
value creation in the society and in the community in which it operates, through its services, conduct
& initiatives, so as to promote sustained growth for the society and community, in fulfillment of its
role as a Socially Responsible Corporate, with environmental concern.

OBJECTIVES

With the above vision, FSNL has formulated a CSR policy with the main objectives of directly or
indirectly taking up programmes that benefit the communities in & around its work centers, which
will result in enhancing the quality of life & economic well-being of the local population, to generate
a community goodwill for FSNL and help reinforce a positive & socially responsible image of FSNL
as a Corporate entity, to ensure an increased commitment at all levels in the organization, etc.

ALLOCATION OF FUND

Effective from 01.04.2014, at least 2.0% of the average net profits of the company made during the
three immediately preceding financial years, shall be spent in each financial year towards discharge of
Corporate Social Responsibility.

SELECTION & NEED ASSESSMENT OF CSR PROJECTS

The Selection of CSR & Sustainability project / activities depend upon the local needs as may be
determined by the need identification studies or discussions with District Administration / local
government / bodies / citizen's forums / NGOs/Trusts / Societies / Beneficiaries etc and the requests /
applications are scrutinized and screened by the Corporate level CSR Committee.

The need assessment / baseline survey is carried out through in-house expertise and recourses.

APPROVAL OF CSR PROJECTS/ACTIVITIES

All the CSR projects / activities are recommended by the CSR Monitoring Committee and thereafter
approved by the Board of Directors.
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2. Composition of CSR Monitoring Committee:

During Financial Year 2024-25, Board Level Committee was constituted for CSR which was
headed by an Independent Director. The Composition of the Committee is decided by the
Board of Directors of the Company. The CSR Committee was dissolved on 05.11.2024
following the resignation of Shri Adya Prasad Pandey (DIN: 09347851), Independent
Director. Subsequently, upon the induction of Shri Toshihiro Fujiwara (DIN: 10903855) and
Shri Kazuhiro Hasumi (DIN: 10140115) on 21.01.2025, the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee was reconstituted with two member. The details of the Committee and meetings
held during the year are as follows:

Sl. | Name of Director Designation/ Nature of Number of | Number of
No. Directorship meeting of | meetings of CSR
CSR Committee
Committee attended during the
held during the | year
year
1. | Shri Adya Prasad Chairman
Pandey {(Independent Non- {
(DIN:09347851) Executive Director)
Upto 01.11.2024
2. | Smt. Bhanu Kumar | Member
(DIN: 07982360) (Non-Executive Director) 1
3. | Shri Ashwini Kumar | Member 1
(DIN:07598593) (Non-Executive Director) 1
4. | Shri Toshihiro Member
Fujiwara (Non-Executive Director) 0
{w.e.f21.01.2025)
5. | Shri Kazuhiro Member
Hasumi (DIN: (Non-Executive Director) 0
10140115)

(w.e.f21.01.2025)

Note:- The CSR Committee was dissolved on 05.11.2024 following the resignation of Shri Adya
Prasad Pandey (DIN: 09347851), Independent Director. Subsequently, upon the induction of Shri
Toshihiro Fujiwara (DIN: 10903855) and Shri Kazuhiro Hasumi (DIN: 10140115) on
21.01.2025, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was reconstituted with two member.
Smt. Bhanu Kumar (DIN: 7982360) as nominee Director of MSTC Limited, Shri Ashwini
Kumar (DIN- 07598593) as Government Nominee Director has resigned w.e.f21.01.2025
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3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR commitiee, CSR Policy and CSR
projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.

(a) | Composition of CSR committee https://'www.fsnl.co.in/CUCG.php
(b) | CSR Policy https://www.fsnl.co.in/pdf/CSR_Policy.pdf
(c) | CSR projects Nil

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of
sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social respensibility Policy) Rules,
2014 if applicable (attach the report): Not Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required
for set off for the financial year, if any

Sl. | Financial Year Amount available for set-off from | Amount required to be set
No. preceding financial years (Rs. in | off for the financial year, if
Lakh) any (Rs. in Lakh)
1 2024-25 0 0
Total 0 0

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) (Rs. in Lakh): 6457.74

7. Details of CSR obligation for the financial year.

Si. | Particulars Amount (Rs. in Lakh)
No.
(a) | Two percent of average net profit of the company as | 129.15

per section 135(5) (Rounded off to 130.00)

(b) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or | Nil
programmers or activities of the previous financial
year,

(c) | Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if | 130.00
any

(d) | Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c¢) | 130.00
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8.(a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (Rs. in Lakh)
S?EggciaﬁorYetz: Total amount transferred to Unspent | Amount transferred to any fund
. | CSR Account as per section 135(6) specified under Schedule VII as per
(Rs in Lakhs) : )
second proviso to section 135(5)
Amount. Date of transfer | Name of the | Amount | Date of
Fund transfer
136.77 NIL NIL
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
091 ) (3) “) (5) (6) )] (&) ) (10) (11}
Sl |Name of [ltem Local |Location Project |Amount |Amount Amount | Mode of | Mode of
No  ithe Projectiform the | area ofthe  {uration allocate spentto transferr mplement | Implementation
listof  (Yes/No) |project d  for fhe ed  to| ation through
activities the current unspent | Direct Implementing
in project |financial ICSR {Yes/No) | Agency
Schedule State |Distri inRs.) pear{in |Account Name [ CSR
VIl to et Rs. for the Registrati
the Act. project on number
as  per
Section
135(6)
in Rs.)
1 NIL
TOTAL | NIL
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
(D (2) (3) 4) (5) (6) (7 (8)
Sl. | Name of | Item Local Location of the | Amount | Mode of | Mode of implantation
No. | the from the | area project spent implementation | through  implementing
Project | list of | (Yes/No) for the | on Direct | agency
. f.-lctivities State | District p.ijCt (Yeas/ No. Name CSR
in (inRs.) N
registration
schedule number
VII  to
the Act.
1 NIL
Total | NIL
(d)  Amount spent in Administrative Overheads NIL
(e)  Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable : Not Applicable
(fy Total amount spent for the Financial Year 136.77 Lakhs
(8a+8b+8d-+8e)
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(2

Excess amount for set off, if any

years [(ii)-(iv)]

Sl. | Particular Amount (Rs. in Lakh)
No.
(i) | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per | 129.15
section 135(5) (Rounded off to 130.00)
(i) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 136.77
(iii) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 6.77
(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projectors or | NIL
programmes or activities of the previous financial year,
if any
(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial | 6.77

“Note:- The Company has distributed six ambulances as part of its commitment to the ‘Health
and Nutrition’ theme approved by the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) for Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) activities in the financial year 2024-25, as per the Office
Memorandum (OM) F. No. 8/2/2018-Dir (CSR) dated 15th March 2024

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for preceding three financial year:

Sl. | Preceding | Amount Amount Amount transferred to any fund | Amount remaining
No. | Financial transferred to | spent  in | specified under Schedule VIl as [ to be spent in
Year unspent CSR | the per section 135 (6), if any. succeeding
Account under : reporting financial years. (in
section 135 (6) | Financial Rs.)
(in Rs.) Year (in
Rs. Name | Amt. Date of
of the | (inRs.) | Transfer.
Fund
1. NIL.
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the Financial Year for ongoing projects of the preceding
financial year (s):

@ [@) G & ) (6) (7 ®) (€)) 10y
Sl. | Project | Name | Financial |Project Total Amount | Cumulative | Cumulative | Status
No. | ID. of Yearin (duration | amount | spenton |amountspent| amount of the
the | which the allocated the at the end of | spent at the | project
Project| project was forthe | projectin | reporting end of
commenced project (in the Financial reporting |Completed
Rs.) reporting |Year. (in Rs.)| Financial |/ Ongoing
Financial Year. (in
Year (in Rs.)
Rs. )
1 NIL
TOTAL] NIL

10. In case creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset

so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year

(asset-wise details).

(a)
(b)

()

Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s)

Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of

capital asset.

Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary

Not applicable

under whose name such capital asset is registered,
their address etc.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two percent of the average net
profit as per section 135 (5) : Not Applicable

" Y

s

q

_F‘[_a %i

( Shri Pankaj Tyagi )

GM (P&A)/Law

RARE A F

(Shri Toshihiro Fujiwara,
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ist MARCH, 2025

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

(FORMERLY ENOWN AS FERRO SCRAP NIGAM LIMITED)
(CIN: U27102CTI1979FTCO05468)

Registered Oifice: FSNL Bhawan, Equipment Chowk Central Avenue, -

Bhilai, Durg, Dis{: Durg, Chattisgarh, India, 420001

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

CS ISHA GARG
M/s I & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries
Office: 608-A, The One, 5 R.N.T. Marg, Indore-452001{MP)
Ph. 0731-4041303 Mob: 09009403008
e-mail:igassociatescs@gmail.com

e e e
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IG & Associates ISHA GARG
Company Secretaries ; B.Sc, FCS, MBA

Office: 608-A, The One, 5, R.N.T. Mirg, Indore-452001(M.P.)

E-mail: igassociatescs@gmail.com, Mob: 09009403008

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31st MARCH, 2025
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members of

FSNL Private Limited

(Formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

Registered Office: FSNL Bhawan,

Equipment Chowk Central Avenue,

Bhilai, Durg, Dist: Durg, Chattisgarh, India, 490001 i
(CIN:U27102CT1979FTC005468)

I, have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by FSNL Private Limited (Formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam
Limited) (CIN:U27102CT1979FTC005468] (hereinafter called “the Company” or “FSNL”) Secretarial
 Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, the
explanation and clarification given to me and the representation made by the management. I hereby
report that in my opinion the company has during the audit period covering the financial year ended
on 31st March, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
company has proper board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

I, have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under read with ‘modlﬁcatmns
exemptions and clarifications thereto;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under; the
Company is being an unlisted Company during the Audit period. The Securities Contracts
(Regulation) Act 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under are not applicable to the Company
during the financial year under review.

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Reigulations and Bye-Laws framed there under;

(iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules made there under to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings.

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act 1992 ('SEBI Act): (The Company being an unlisted Company dun’ng the Audit Period the
Jollowing Regulations and Guidelines are not applicable the Company.)
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(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acguisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations 2011, as amended from time to time. Not Applicable. f

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading] Regulations, 2015 as
amended from time to time. Not Applicable.

{c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2018, as amended frorp time to time. Not Applicable.

(d) The Securities and Exchange Boarid of India (Share Based Employee Benefit) Regulation, 2014.
Not Applicable.

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021. Not Applicable.

{f) The Securities and Exchange Board of Indic. (Registrars to an issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client. Not Applicable.

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021. Not
Applicable.

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018. Not
Applicable.

During the period under review the company has generally complied with the provisions of specific

are

Laws applicable to the company. The Management has identified and confirmed that {ollowing laws

specifically applicable to the company. I have obtained representation/certificate for bompliances

applicable laws and [ rely on the same.

i
iR

iv.

vi.
Vii.

Viii.

The Factories Act, 1948

The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947

The Payment of Wages Act, 1936 E

The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948

The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1870
The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

The Child Labour (Prohibitions and Regulation) Act, 1986

i. The Industrial Employment (Standing Order) Act, 1946
i. The Employees Compensation Act, 1923 (Workman’s Compensation Act, 1923)

. The Apprentices Act, 1961
The Equal Remuneration Act, 1976

i. The Employment Exchange (Compulsory Notification of Vacancies Act, 1959

i. The Sexual Harassment of Woman at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,

2013.
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I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standard issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(i) The Listing Agreement entered-into by the Company with the Exchange read with SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 as amended from time to time. The
Company is not a listed entity hence provisions of this regulations are not applicable to the
company.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I further report that:

M/s Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of MSTC Ltd) has successfully concluded
with the transfer of 100% shares of Ferro § crap Nigam Limited by MSTC to Konoike Transport Co. Ltd.
(Japanese corporation listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange), the Board of Directors of the Company is
constituted with proper balance of Director, Non- Executive Directors and KMP’s.

The changes in composition of the Board of Directors that took during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provision of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meeting and all instances of dispatch of
notice or agenda for shorter period were ratified by the Board and recorded in the minutes. Further a
system exist for seeking and obtaining further information and clarification on the agenda items before
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company, including the resolution
approved through circulations if any were carried through on the basis of majority, and dissenting
members, views, where any, were recorded as part of the minutes.

I further report that: ;

There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.

I further report that:

!
The Compliance by the company for the aipph’cable financial Laws like Direct Taxes, Indirect Tax, and
the Compliance of the Accounting Standards and the Annual Financial Statements and records has
not been reviewed in this audit report, since the same have been subject of the statutory financial
audit/internal audit by other designated professional.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliande with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

[ further report that during the audit period:




FSNL was a wholly owned subsidiary of MSTC Limited (MSTC), a Central Public Sector Enterprise
(CPSE) of the Government of India.

In compliance with the provisions of the iShare Purchase Agreement dated 24 October 2024 executed
among MSTC Limited, Konoike Transport Co., Ltd. and the Company, Konoike Transport Co., Ltd. has
purchased and acquired all of the Company's equity shares (representing 100% of the total issued,
subscribed and fully paid- up equity share capital of the Company) from MSTC Limited, and MSTC
Limited has sold and transferred all of the shares to Konoike Transport Co., Ltd., on a spot delivery
basis on 21st January 2025. .

As a result, the Company has converted from Public Sector Undertaking to Private Limited Company
and consequently the name of the Company has changed to "FSNL Private Limited" vide new
certificate of incorporation obtained from the Registrar of Companies approved on April 29, 2025.

FOR I G & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES
F.R. NO.: 1I2013MP1054000

N
S G
(PROPRIETOR)

M. NO: FCS 9955 CP: 12184
PEER REVIEW NO.: 914/2020
UDIN: F009955G000753060
PLACE: BHILAI

DATE : 10.07.2025

Note: This report is to be read with our letter dated 10.07.2025 whlch is annex as (Annexure I)
and forms and integral part of this report.

m———
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IG & Associates ISHA GARG
Company Secretaries B.Sc, FCS, MBA

Office: 608-A, The One, 5, R.N.T. Marg, Indore-452001(M.P.)

E-mail: igassociatescs@gmail.com, Mob: 09009403008

Annexure - I
i
To,
The Members of
FSNL Private Limited
(Formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)
Registered Office: FSNL Bhawan,
Equipment Chowk Central Avenue, )
* Bhilai, Durg, Dist: Durg, Chattisgarh, India, 490001
(CIN:U27102CT1979FTC005468

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial Records is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial Records based on our Audit.

2. 1 have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done
on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial Records. | believe that the
processes and practices followed provide a reasonable basis for forming our opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of treatment of various tax liabilities and
payment thereof compliance of the applicable IND-AS, financizal records and Books of Accounts of the
company as the same is subject to the Statutory Audit being performed by the Independ?nt Auditors.
4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation/certificates/data Information
about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, standards etc., are the responsibility of management.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of
. the efficiency or effectiveness with which 1i'he management has conducted the affairs of the company.

7. I do not take any responsibility for any person if taking any commercial, financial or investment
decision based on our Secretarial Audit Report as aforesaid and they needs to take independent advise
or decision as per their own satisfaction.

8. I have relied on electronic and soft copies of documents as produced for verification of compliances
of various laws.

FOR I G & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES
F.R. NO.: I12013MP1054000

G
(PROPRIETOR)
M. NO: FCS 9955 CP: 12184 e
PEER REVIEW NO.: 914/2020 i
UDIN: FO09955G000753060
PLACE: BHILAI
DATE : 10.07.2025
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Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURNAS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2025

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rufle 12(1) of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

U27102CT1979FTC0O05468

Registration Date

28 /03/1979

Name of the Company

FSNL Private Limited (Formerly Known
as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

iv. | Category / Sub-Category of the Company @ Company having Share Capital
v. | Address of the Registered office and FSNL BHAWAN, Equipment Chowk,
contact details Central Avenue, Post Box-37 Bhilai-

490001.
Telephone: 0788-2222474 f 2222475,
E-mail: cs@fsnl.co.in,
web site: www.fsnl.co.in

vi. | Whether listed company No

vii. | Name, Address and Contact details of KFIN TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED, 301,

The Centrium, 3rd Floor, 57,

Lal Bahadur Shastri Road, Nav Pada,
Kurla (West), Mumbai - 400 070,
Maharashtra, India.

CIN L72400MH2017PLC444072
Ph.no : +022 4617 0911

TI. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the
company shall be stated:-

(recycling) services on a fees or
contract basis- processing of Iron
& steel scrap and slag handling
Including other mills services.

Sr. Name and Descripiion of NIC Code of % to total turnover of
No. main producis / services !the Product/ the company
3 e service o

1 Metal Waste & Scrap recovery 3830 100

¥I1. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sr. | Name And CIN/GLN Holding/ % of Applicable
Mo. | Address Of The Subsidiary shares Section
Company /Associate held
i. | Konoike Transport | 120001079182 | Holding 100 -
Co., Limited Company
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage

of Total Equity)

i. Category-wise Share Holding

Promoter (A)=

(ML) + (A) (2

Category of Ro. of Shares held at the MNo. of Shares held at 9% :
Shareholders beginning of the year the end of the year Change
during
the
year
‘. Demat Phys Total - 1% of \Dem at{Phy Total - 9% of &
ondcalnib ocaTotal Lo dsical b Total
: CiShares | i Ghar
SR i f.::_ : IR ERIEEE TR i es :
A. Promoter
1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF
b) Central Govt 32000 | - 32000 | 100 - - - - ~100
(PSU) 000 000
c) State Govt(s)
) Bodies Comp
e) Banks / FI
f} Any Other
32000 | - 32000 | 100 - - . - ~100
Sub-total(A)(1):- | 080 000
2) Foreign
g) NRIs-
Individuals
h} Other-
Individuals
i} Bodies Corp. - - - - 3200 | - 32000 | 100 | 100
0000 000
j)Banks / FI
k) Any Other....
- - - - 3200 ;- | 32000 | 100 100
Sub-total {A)(2):- ¢Qo00 Qoo
Total 32000 | - 32000 | 100 3200 | - 32000 | 100 | 100
Shareholding of | 000 000 0000 000

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b} Banks / FI

¢) Central Govt

d) State Govk(s)

e) Venture Capital
Funds

fy Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

h) Foreign
Venture

51




Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B){1)

2. Nen
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.
(i) Indian
(i) Overseas

b) Individuals

(1) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh

(it) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs 1
lakh

c) Others(Specify)

Sub-total (B)(2)

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)}(1)+
(B)(2)

Custodian for

C. Shares held by

GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total 32000 - 32000 : 100 3200 | - 32000 100 | 100
(A+B+C) ooo0 000 Ga00 000
ii.Shareholding of Promoters
Sr. ‘Shareholder’s Shareholding at the Shareholding at the end
Mo | RName beginning of the year of the year
No. of %% of Y%of No. of % of %of % chan
Shar  total Shares Shar  total Shares gein
es Shares (Pledged/ s Shares Pledged/ [share
of the encumbe gof the encumbe  holdi ng
compa red to total compa red to total during
ny shares ny shares the year
1. MSTCLTD. 3200 | 100 Nil Nil Nil Nil 100
(PSU) 0000
2.| Konoike Nil Nil Nil 3199 | 99.99 Nil 99.99
Transport Co., 9009
Limited
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3. Konoike india Nil Nil i Negligi | NIl Negligib
Private Limited ble le
Total 3200 : 100 Nil 3200 | 100 Nil 100
6000 0000

iii.Change in Promoters’ Shareholding { please specify, if there is no

change

no

Sr.

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the vear

year

No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
company company

At the beginning of the 32000000 100 32000000 100

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the
yvear specifying the
reasons for decrease (
transfer of 100% shares
on 21.01.2025):

On 21.01.2025, the management and 100% shareholding
of FSNL Private Limited were transferred from MSTC
Limited to Konoike Transport Company Limited.

Subsequently,

on the same date,

Konoike Transport

Company Limited transferred 1 {one)} equity share to
Konoike India Private Limited in order to comply with the
minimum shareholder requirement prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013,

At the End of the year

32000000

160

32000000

100

iv.Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors,

Promoters And Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Shareholding at the

Cumulative Shareholding |

Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for
increase/ Decrease (e.g.

allotment/ transfer/ bonus/

sweat equity etc):

beginning of the year| during the year
For Each of the Top 10 No. of shares | % of total | No. of shares |% of total
Shareholders hares of the shares of
Company the
company
At the beginning of the vear N.A, NLA. N.A. N.A.
Date wise Increase/ Decrease in| No Change N.A.
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AL the End of the year(or on the
date of separation, if separated

during the year)

NLA, N.A.

N.A, N.A.

v.Shareholding of Directors and Kev Managerial Personnel:

s, Sharehelding at thel Cumulative Shareholding
Mo. beginning of the year during the year
Far Each of the Directors No. of % of total No. of 9 of total shares
and KMP shares |shares of the | shares of the company
company
At the beginning of the year None of the Directors and KMP holds any shares in
FSNL.
Date wise Increase/ No Change NLA.
Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifying
the reasons for increase
/decrease {e.qg. aliotment/
transfer/ bonus/ sweat
Equity etc):
Af the End of the year Nil il Nil Nil

V.INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not
due for payment

Secured
Loans
excluding
deposiis

Unsecured
L.oans

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the
beginning of the financial

year

i} Principal Amount
if) Interest due but not

paid

iii} Interest accrued but

not

[LH

Total (i+ii+ii)

Nl

Change in Indebtedness
during the financial year
- Addition

- Reduction

Ml

Net Change

Nil

Indebtedness at the
end of the financial year

Nil
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i} Principal Amount

ii} Interest due but not
paid iil) Interest accrued
but not due

Nil

Total (i+ii+iii)

Note : The Company used overdraft facility amounting to Nil (previous year Nil) against Fixed Deposit
with Indian Bank and IDBI Bank, Bhilai Branch to meet its working capital.

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSORNNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or
Manager

sl Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Total
No. Manager Amount

1. Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions -
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act,

1961

{b) Value of perguisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act,
1961

{c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

2. Stock Option -
3. Sweat Equity -
. Commission -

- as % of profit
- others, specify...

5 Others, please specify -

6. Total (A) -

Ceiling as per the Act -

Note :
Shri Manobendra Ghoshal (DIN: 09762368) as Chairman and Managing Director,
Smt. Bhany Kumar (DIN: 7982360} as nominee Director of MSTC Limited, Shri
Ashwini Kumar (DIN- 07598593) as Government Nominee Director has resigned
from the Board w.e.f 21.01,2025




B. Remuneration to other directors:

si. Particulars of Remuneration Shri Adya Prasad Total
Mo. Pandey, Amount
Independent
Director

Independent Directors

- Fee for attending board committee 135000 135000

meetings

- Commission

- Others, please specify

Total (1) 135000 135000

Other Non-Executive Directors

- Fee for attending board committee

meetings NA NA

+ Commission

- Others, please specify

Total {2) 8] 0

Total (B)={1+2) 135000 135000
K

The Non-Official Independent Directors were paid sitting fees within the {imits
as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.
Note : During the financial year 2024-25 no remuneration was paid by Company to any other
Non-executive Directar except Non-executive Independent Directors of the Company. Shri
Adya Prasad Pandey (DIN: 09347851), Independent Director, resigned from the Board with
effect from 01.11.2024

C. Remiuneration to Kev Managerial Personnel Other Than MD /Manager

FWTD
(Amount in Rs.)
sl PFarticulars of Key Managerial Personnel
no. | Remuneration _
Shri Sumit Shri Nishant Total
Kumar Roy Agrawal
CFO Cs
1. Gross salary
{a) Salary as per 2800997.34 1292095.41 4093092.75

provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

(b} Value of
perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax
Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section

17(3) Income-tax

Act, 1961
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5T Stock Option 0 0 0
3, Sweat Equity 0] 0 0
4, Commission 0 0 0
- as % of profit
- others, specify
5. Others, please specify
- HRA 277597.80 0 277597.80
- s 93,783.00 0 93,783.00
- Entertainment allowance 5285.00 0] 5285.00
- Performance Related 643366.00 0 643366.00
Pay
6 Total 38,21,029.14 12,92,095.41 | 51,13,124.55

Note:

Suitable disclosures to details of post-employment benefits and other long-term
benefits are made in note no. 38 in the notes to the financial statements.
VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Compounding

Type Section of  Brief Details of Authority[RD  Appeal
the - description  Penaity/ /NCLT/Court] made. If
companies Punishment/ any(give
Act Compounding details)

: | fees imposed
A. Company
Penalty None
Punishment
Compounding

B. Directors
Penalty None
Punishment

__Compounding

C. Other Officers In Default
Penalty None
Punishment

Place: Bhilai
Date:10.07.2025

Toshihiro Fujiwara
Chairman and Director
DIN: 10903855

o7




e

r SM-11, GAURAV PATH, FADAMANABHPUR
I " | mail : vrawalho@gmail.com
Chartered Accountants i

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To

The Members of

FSNL PRIVATE LIMITED ( FORMERLY KNOWN AS FERRO SCRAP NIGAM LIMITED )
(CIN : U271 O2CT1979FT0005468)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of FSNL PRIVATE LIMITED ( FORMERLY
KNOWN AS FERRO SCRAP NIGAM LIMITED ) (‘the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statement for
the year ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein
after referred to as “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2025, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act 2013 (* the Act’). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act and the Rules made there under, and we have
fuffilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole and informing our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon
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The Company's management & Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s
Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Management & Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
entity’s ability to continue as a going concem , disclosing , as applicable, matter related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the entity or to
cease operations , or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the entity's financial reposting process .
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

0 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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I Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

0 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accou nting estimates and
related disclosures made by management and Board of Directors.

1 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up o the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

[ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work: and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies ( Auditor's Report ) Order,2020 ( “ the Order *) , as amended , issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “
Annexure-A “ a statement of the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order.
2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books,

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standard specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companles (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

g) Section 164(2) of Act , i.e. written representation from directors regarding disqualification of Directors not
applicable to Government Company ..

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B, Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with the requirements
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the
Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2021, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

I. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations and the impact on its financial position in its Ind
AS Financial Statements - Refer Note No. 39 of the Financial Statements.

il. The Company did not have any long-term contracts, including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

iil. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

iv. The management has represented that |, to the best of its knowledge and belief , no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested ( either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or any kind
of funds)by the Company to or in any persons or entities including foreign entities ( * Intermediaries * ) with the
understanding whether recorded in writing or otherwise , that the intermediary shall :
e directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
(Ultimate Beneficiaries *) by or on behalf of the company or
* provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of Ultimate Beneficiaries.

v. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received
by the Company from any persons or entities including foreign entities ( “ Funding Parties * ) with the
understanding whether recorded in writing or otherwise , that the intermediary shall :
e directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
(Ultimate Beneficiaries “) by or on behalf of the company or
* provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of Ultimate Beneficiaries
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vi. Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing

has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (d) (i) and (d)
(ii) contain any material misstatement,

vii. The Dividend declared during the year by the company is in compliance with section 123 of the Companies
Act,2013.

viii. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company
with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 is applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2025,

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting software for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility however, the
same has not been operated/enabled throughout the year for all transactions recorded in the software,
Further, since the audit trail is not being maintained by the company, we are unable to comment on any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered.

Further, proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 is applicable from 1st April 2023,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 on preservation of audit trail as
per statutory requirements for record retention is operative for current financial year , but no such record made
available to us for verification for the F.Y, 2023-24.

For VRAWAL & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 011303N

g2 |

Place:-DURG CA PAYAL MITTAL

Date: 10/07/2025 (Partner)
Membership No. 474037

UDIN: 254340 3+ ROEQPTE334
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-  SM-11, GAURAV PATH, PADAMANABHPUR
[ DURG CHATTISHGARH —

V RAWAL & COMPANY | % ‘ mail : vrawalho@gmail.com:

Chartered Accountants \ /

ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred fo in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to
the Members of FSNL PRIVATE LIMITED ( FORMERLY KNOWN AS FERRO SCRAP NIGAM LIMITED ) of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us, by the Company and baoks of account
and record examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that :

i. In respect of the Company's property, plant and equipment: right-of-use assets, intangible assets :
(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
property, plant and equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assels.

(b) The Company has a regular program of verification to cover all the items of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets in a phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain property, plant and equipment were physically verified by the
management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(c) The company is not having any owned immovable property however lease title deeds of leased immovable properties
are held in the name of the company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets), intangible
assets during the year.

(e ) No proceedings have been initiated  during the year or pending against the company as at 315t March,2025 for
holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made there under.

il. a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year, in our
opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. As informed to us, any
discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed on such verification.

b) The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees (at any point of time
during the year), in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the company..

iii. The company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans , secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Consequently, the provisions of clauses 3(ii) (a), to
3(ii)f) and (c) of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

iv The company has neither made any investment nor has it given any loans or provided guarantee or security and
therefore the relevant provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 ( “the Act’) are not applicable to the
Company , Accordingly , clause 3(iv) of the order is not applicable.

v. The Company has not accepted deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public. Accordingly
clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Thus reporting under clause 3(vi) of the
order is not applicable fo the Company.

vii. In respect of statutory dues:

(a) In our opinion, The Company has generally been regular in deposiling undisputed statutory dues, including Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax,
Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examinations of the record of the
company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods & Service Tax, Provident Fund, employees State Insurance,
Income tax, duty of Custom or Cess or other statutory dues, which have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute except the amount mentioned in Note No. 39 to the ‘Note on Accounts”.

Viii There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

Ix (a) The company did not have any loans or borrowings from any lender during the year, Hence reporting under clause
3(ix)(a) of the order is not applicable to the company.

(b) Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender;
(c) The company has not obtained any term loans during the year, Hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the order is

not applicable to the company,

(d) No funds raised on short term basis have been utilized for long term purposes;

(€) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures;

(f)y The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures
or associate companies.

X. (a) The company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(x)(a) of the order are not applicable to the company and hence not commented
upon.
b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment
or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(x)(b) of the order are not applicable

Xi (a) No fraud by the company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the year.
(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto
the date of this report.
(c) No whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the company.

Xii In our opinion, The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provision of clause 3 (xii) of the order is not
applicable to the company.

Xiil In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS Financial Statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

Xiv. (a) The Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its
business.
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(b) We have considered the report of internal auditor for the period under audit.

xv. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected with its
directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable,

b) There is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

xvii. The company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and the immediately preceding financial year.

xviil. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year,

Xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
company is incapable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

10. The There are no unspent amount to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act
within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section(5) of
section 135 of the said Act.

10i. The company does not have any amount remaining unspent under sub-section(5) of section 135 of the Companies
Act,2013 , Accordingly Para 3 clause (10) (b) of the order is not applicable.

For V RAWAL & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 011303N

L

Place:-DURG CA PAYAL MITTAL

Date: 10/07/2025 (Partner) :
Membership No. 474037
UDIN : 35U+ 4033+B 0B PT 5339
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’"S REPORT

(Referred o in paragraph 3(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the
Members of FSNL PRIVATE LIMITED ( FORMERLY KNOWN AS FERRO SCRAP NIGAM LIMITED ) of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (I) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financlal reporting of FSNL PRIVATE LIMITED ( FORMERLY
KNOWN AS FERRO SCRAP NIGAM LIMITED ) (‘the Company") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's and Board of Director’s Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management and Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining
intemnal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company

the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with references to Financial Statement
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
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reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements In accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial with references to Financial Statement

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, fo the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over
financial reparting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For V RAWAL & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 011303N

R
s
Place:-DURG CA PAYAL MITTAL
Date: 10/07/2025 (Partner)

Membership No. 474037

UDIN: 3543403 1BOEAPTEA2Y
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FSNL Private Limited (formerly knowin as Ferro Scrap Migam Limited)

CIN: U27102CT1979FTCO05468
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025
{Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes As at As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023

(Restated) {Restated)

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment B 7,915.70 8,116.96 TA422.88
Right-of-use asset & 457,25 472,61 469.05
Capltal work-in-progress 6 - - 8.18
Other intanglble assets 7 2.00 964 20.44
Financial assets:

i. Other financial assets 9 26.62 ¢,206.54 7.666.19
Deferred tax assets (net} 10 1,362.59 97250 675.31
Non-current tax assets (net) 11 1.301.90 617,56 1,599.53
Other non-current assets 12 q.94 2.95 6.31
Total non-current assets (A) 11,076.00 12.401.76 17,867.89
Current assets
Inventorles 13 51756 537.68 51467
Financial assels:

i. Trade receivables 14 10,263.66 156,865.33 8,747.38

il. Cash and cash equivalents 15 5,885.03 1,653.62 2.722.00

lii. Bank balances other than (ji.) above 16 10,428.55 8,126.98 7.992.67

iv, Other financial assets 9 778,01 624.43 1.062.24
Contract assets 17 4,346.67 4,268.05 4,22091
Other current assets 12 1,237 60 755,39 BDg.52
Current assets excluding assets classified as held for sale and 33.457.07 31,831.48 26,088.39
assets ratired from active use
Assets classified as held for sale 18 253,30 283.25 23290
Assels retired from active use 13.85 17.39 3214
Total current assets (B) 33,724.22 32,132.42 26,353.43
Total assets (A+B) 44 800.22 44,533.88 44,221.32
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Eauitv
Equity share capital 19 2,200.00 3,200.00 3,200.00
Other equity 20 2855856 22.595.54 A
Total equity (A) 31,758.56 £5,795.54 21,802.93
LIABILITIES
MNon-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Lease liabilities B 301.22 303.05 310,04
Provisians 22 253172 7,613.34 7,833.23
Total non-current liabilities(B) 2,832.94 7,916.39 8,143.27
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

I Lease liabilities 8 1.83 7.00 246.27

li. Trade payables 23

{a) Total outstanding dues ef micro and small enterprises 180.40 427.76 182,07
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 2,539.52 4,346.18 3.634.05
and small enterprises

iil, Other financial labilities 21 2.212.51 2,337.20 2,052.41

| Fravisions 22 3,523.55 1,690.77 b6,680.50
Other current liabilities 24 1,749.37 1,879.15 1,474.87
Total current Uabilities excluding liabilities relating to assets 10,207.18 10,788.06 14,270.17
held for sale

Liabilities relating to assets classified as held for sale 18 154 33.89 4.95
Total current liabilities (C) 10,208.72 10,821,95 14,275.12
Total liabilities (B+C) 13,041.66 18,738.34 22,418.39
Total equity and liabilitles (A+B+C) 44,800.22 44,533.88 44,221.32
Summary of Material A ing Policies 17To50 i

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For V.RAWAL & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reglstration No: 011303N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferre Scrap Nigam Limited)

Mﬁoﬁ

Sumit Kumar Roy
AGM (FEA) & CFO

b!s‘!ant wal

Company Secretary
Membership No: A40900

CA Payal Mittal Q 0’*\(,
Partner '

Membership No: 4?4ﬁ?

UDIN : '
25474037BOEQPIS339 "‘"_' /% /f: f S \\
R/ 15 7 (4 ,3'/:“
Toshihire Fujiwara Yukiliiro Momese
Place; Bhilai Chalrman and Non- Executive Director Executive Director

Date: OIN: 10903855 DIN: 10908033

10 JUL 2025
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FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

CIN: U27102CT1979FTC005468
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts In INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes| For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Restated)
Income:
Revenue from operations 25 45,895.18 43,461.01
Other income 26 1,778.74 3,310.76
Total income (I) 47,673.92 46,771.77
Expenses:
Operational Expenses 27 6,626.03 6,307.70
Employee benefits expense 28 9,274.27 11,201.51
Finance costs 29 29.59 30.93
Depreciation and amortization expense 30 1,716.74 169841
Other expenses 31 2157152 18.721.52
Total expenses (II) 39,218.15 37,960.07
Profit before tax (IIL = I - II) 8,455.77 8,811.70
Income tax expense 32
- Current tax 2,549.46 251258
- Deferred tax (390.09) (297.19)
Total tax expense (IV) 2,159.37 2,215.39
Profit After Tax for the year (V =III - IV) 6,296.40 6,596.31
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit plans (445.51) (58.40)
Income tax relating to above item 112.13 14.70
Total other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (VI) (333.38) (43.70)
Total comprehensive income for the year (VII =V + VI) 5,963.02 6,552.61
Earnings per equity share (nominal value per share Rs. 10)
(i) Basic (INR) 33 19.68 20.61
() Diluted (INR) 33 19.68 2061
Summary of Material Accounting Policies 1 To 60

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For V.RAWAL & Ca
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 011303N

Mhaﬂr' grawal

CA Payal Mittal ;5\, =
g{/’ - Qﬁuwalg

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

Ahte

Sumit Kumar Raoy
AGM (F&A) & CFO

Partner Company Secretary
Membership No: 474037, Membership No: A40800
UDIN :
6 (% %
25474037BOEGP)
-’]\r ﬁi i 7;\

Toshihiro Fujiwara
Place: Bhilai Chairman and Non- Executive Director
Date: DIN: 10803855

10 JUL 2025
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FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferra Scrap Nigam Limitad)
CIN: U27102CT1079FTCOD5468

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2025

{Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars for the year ended As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(Restated)

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit befare income tax B,455.77 8,811.70
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expense 1,716.74 1,698.41
Liabllities/provisions no longer required written back (771.04) (2,336.21)
Interest on fixed deposit (892.49) (890.83)
Profit on sale of fixed assets (H.QG}I (12.86)
Unwinding of discount on security deposits (0.10) (0.09)
Interest expense on lease Habilities 24.04 30.93
Other finance cest 158 =
Provision for doubtful debt 1,490.93 356.00
Provislon for assets awaiting for disposal HB 66 65,33
Other provision 539 2.46
Operatinug profit before working capital changes 10,093.55 7,724.84
Movements in working capital:
(Increase)/Decrease In trade receivables 4,201.75 (7,573,95)
(Increase)/Decrease in contract assets (78.62) (47.14)
(Increase)/Decrease In inventories 20,12 (23.01)
(Increase)/Decrease in other financlal assets (386.51) 5,304.52
(Increase)/Decrease in other assets (486.20) 53.48
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables (2.054.02) 957.83
Increase/ (Decrease) in pravisions (2,816.50) (2,919.56)
Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial liabilities {124.69) 284.80
Increase/ (Decrease) In othar Uabilities (262.13) 533.21
Cash generated from/(used in) operations B,106.66 4,295.02
Income taxes paid (net of rafunds) (3.233.81) (1,530.60)
Cash generated from operations (A) 4,872.85 2,764.42
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant & equipment including ROU asset (1,608.72) (2.465.16)
Proceeds from sale of preperty, plant and equipment and intang|ble assets - =
Investment in fixed deposits 111.38 478.71
Interest received on fixed deposits B9Z.49 89084
Met cash generated used in Investing activities (8) (504.85) (1,095.61)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Payments of lease liabilities (principal) (7.00) (246.26)
Interest pald on lease liabilities (28.04) (20.93)
Dividend paid - (2,560.00)
Other finance cost (1.65) -
Net cash generated from/(used In) financing activities (C) (36.59) (2,837.19)|
Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 4,331.41 (1,168.38)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1.553.62 2,722.00
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5,885.03 1,553.62 |
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following (refer note 15)
Balances with banks
-in current accounts 5,885 03 1,55362
-in foreign currency accourts = *
-deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months = .
-deposits with original maturity of more than 3 but less than 12 months
Total cash and bank balances at end of the year 5,885.03 1,553.62

Notes :

1. Please refer note 41 for reconcillation on movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities,
2. The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the (ndirect method set out in Tndian Acecounting Standard (‘Ind AS) 7 Statement of Cash Flows as
netified under section 133 of the Companles Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
As per our report of even date attached

For V.RAWAL & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 011303N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

)VL@(, Acshoy

Sumit Kumar Roy

ishant Agrawal
AGM (FEeA) & CFO

Cempany Secretary

Toshihlre Fujiwara Yukihiro Momete
Executive Director
DIN: 10905033

CA Payal Mittal -’{{. o& B
Partner ALawal & C
Membership No: 4740327 A o

UDIN : .

Placd IA{fJ37BOEGR] ‘

Datea:
Chairman and Non- Executive Director

DIN: 10963855
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FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)
CIN: U27102CT1979FTCO05468

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

I Equity share capital (refer note 19)

Particulars Number of shares Amount
As at 01 April 2023 3,20,00,000 3,200.00
Changes In equity share capital during the year - -
As at 31 March 2024 3,20,00,000 3,200.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year - .
As at 31 March 2025 3,20,00,000 3,200.00
II Other equity (refer note 20)
Particulars Retained earnings General Resarve Total other equity
Balance as at 01 April 2023 * (796.58) 19,399.51 18,602.93
Profit for the year ended 31 March 2024 6,596.31 - 6,596.31
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (43.70) - (43.70)
Total comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 March 6,552.61 - 6,552.61
DANADA
Dividends paid (2,560.00) - (2,560.00)
Transfer to general reserve (3,080.00) 3,080.00 -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 116.03 22,479.51 22,595.54
Profit for the year ended 31 March 2025 6.296.40 - 6,296.40
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (333.38) - (333.38)
Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 5,063.02 - 5,963.02
2025
Transfer to ganeral reserve (5,940.00) 5,940.00 -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 138.05 28,419.51 28,558.56

* Restated downwards by 87,06 lakhs, towards reinstated in leases and capital reserve referred to in note 41,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For V.RAWAL & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo: 011303N

CA Payal Mittal [
Partner Q
Membership No: 474037
UDIN :

25474037B0EQPI5339

Place: Bhilal
Date:

10 JUL 2025

.

Company Secretary
Membership No: A40800

SFRALE,

Toshihiro Fujiwara
Chalrman and Non- Executive Director
CIN: 10903855
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315t March 2025

1. Corporate information

FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited) ("FSNL" or the
"Company") was incorporated under the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 on March 28, 1979.
The registered office of the Company is situated at FSNL Bhawan, Equipment Chowk Central
Avenue, Bhilai, Dist. Durg, Chhattisgarh, India, 490001.

The Company undertakes the job of recovery and processing of scrap from slag and refuse
generated during iron and steel making at Steel Plants. It offers specialized services for Dig
and Haulage of Blast Furnaces & Steel Melting Shop slag at slag yards, processing of iron and
steel skulls, mill rejects & maintenance scrap as per customer's requirement. FSNL also offers
scalping of slabs, crushing and screening of LD slag to be used in sinter plant, blast furnace,
steel melting shop & rail ballast. It removes sludge & ash deposit from sludge compartments
& ash ponds. It also handle and neutralize Acid Sludge in open Hearth Muck Dump.

FSNL was a wholly owned subsidiary of MSTC Limited (MSTC), a Central Public Sector
Enterprise (CPSE) of the Government of India.

In compliance with the provisions of the Share Purchase Agreement dated 24 October 2024
executed among MSTC Limited, Konoike Transport Co., Ltd. and the Company, Konoike
Transport Co., Ltd. has purchased and acquired all of the Company's equity shares
(representing 100% of the total issued, subscribed and fully paid- up equity share capital of
the Company) from MSTC Limited, and MSTC Limited has sold and transferred all of the
shares to Konoike Transport Co., Ltd., on a spot delivery basis on 21st January 2025.

As a result, the Company has converted from Public Sector Undertaking to Private Limited
Company and consequently the name of the Company has changed to "FSNL Private Limited"
vide new certificate of incorporation obtained from the Registrar of Companies approved on
April 29, 2025.

2. Basis of Preparation
2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, as
amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the Act. These financial
statements are prepared on going concern basis.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2025 were
approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors on 10th

July, 2025.
2.2 Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on
accrual basis, except for the following:
' = certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) and
contingent consideration is measured at fair value
» assets held for sale — measured at fair value less cost to sell
* defined benefit plans - plan assets mea agfai

Page | 5



Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315t March 2025

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is the
Company’s functional currency. All financial information presented in (INR) has been
rounded to the nearest lakh (up to two decimals), except when indicated otherwise.

2.4 Current and non-current classification

The Company classifies its assets and liabilities as current/non-current in the balance sheet
as per the
requirements of Ind AS 1 and considering 12 months period as normal operating cycle.

3. Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles of Ind AS requires management of the Company to make estimates and judgements
that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent liabilities
as at the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses for
the periods presented.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised, and
future periods are affected.

The Company uses the following critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
in preparation of its financial statements:

3.1 Revenue Recognition

The Company exercises judgement for identification of performance obligations,
determination of transaction price, ascribing the transaction price to each distinct
performance obligation and in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied
at a point in time or over a period of time. These judgements have been explained in detail
under the revenue recognition note (Refer note 5.11).

3.2 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each
reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future
periods.

3.3 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
__considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in

R ke 3 s 5 .
@qﬁ%,«mssumptlons about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
E /T a2

o\ ; : :
} 34 Impairment of financial assets (other than at fair val_qg)

> /) x
’

arates, which have been
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315 March 2025

_explained in the note on financial assets, financial liabilities and equity instruments, under
impairment of financial assets (other than at fair value) (Refer note 5.8).

3.5 Deferred tax assets

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be
utilised. Accordingly, the Company exercises its judgement to reassess the carrying amount
of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period.

3.6 Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company estimates the provisions that have present obligations as a result of past events
and it is probable that outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligations. These
provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates. The Company uses significant judgements to assess contingent
liabilities. Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from
past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of
the amount cannot be made. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the
standalone financial statements.

3.7 Employee Benefits

The accounting of employee benefit plans in the nature of defined benefit requires the
Company to use assumptions. These assumptions have been explained under employee
benefits note (Refer note 5.10).

4.  New standards, interpretations and amendments adopted by the Company Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the
year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS — 117 Insurance Contracts and
amendments to Ind AS 116 — Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable
to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2024. The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements
and based on its evaluation has determined that it does not have any significant impact in its
financial statements.

5 Material accounting policies

A summary of the material accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial
statements are as given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all
periods presented in the financial statements. It allows for an understanding as to how
material transactions, other events and conditions are reported. It also describes: (a)
judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that management makes in applying the
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Financial
Statements; and (b) estimations, including assumptions about the future, that management

akes in applying the policies.
m\. pplying the p
o S a ey Accounting Estimates and Critical Judgements
w»
i

X

-

-

preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ird % es management to
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315t March 2025

make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the accounts and reported amounts
of income and expenses during the period.

Actual results may differ from these estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the
estimation and judgements based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively. Critical accounting judgements and the key sources
of estimation or uncertainty in applying the Company’s accounting policies arise in relation
to assets, liabilities, income and expenses. All of these key factors are reviewed on a
continuous basis.

5.2 Property, plant and equipment

An Item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and its costs can be
measured reliably. This recognition principle is applied to the costs incurred initially to
acquire an item of property, plant and equipment and also to cost incurred subsequently to
add to, replace part of, or

service it. All other repair and maintenance costs, including regular service, are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss as incurred. When a replacement occurs, the carrying amount
of the replaced part is de-recognised.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
impairment

losses. Cost of acquisition or construction of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes net of trade
discounts, rebates and any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working
condition for its intended use Included in property, plant and equipment are locse plant and
tools which are stated at cost less amounts written off related to their expected useful lives
and estimated scrap value.

Spares having useful life of more than one year and having value of Rs. 25.00 Lakhs or more
in each case, are capitalised under the respective heads as and when available for use.

The gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit

and loss.
Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is valued at cost and includes equipment in transit and the cost of
fixed assets that are not ready for their intended use at the reporting date.

~ Asset Retired from Active use
\“f\ﬁ' m-'?ﬁ:";;"ll,f:-“i\
1:.::;' \ Wlen an asset is retired from active use, but not yet surveyed off, will be transferred to “Asset
co ) Retired from Active use” with residual value of 5% of the Cost of Asset and same will be
BHiLtL/ elassified as “Current Assets”

{ /
Pivate S
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315t March 2025

5.3 Assets held for sale

The Company classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale rather than through continuing
use and a sale consideration is highly probable.

Non-current assets comprising of assets and liabilities are classified as ‘held for sale’ when all
the following criteria are met: (i) decision has been made to sell, (ii) the assets are available
for immediate sale in its present condition, (iii) the assets are being actively marketed and
(iv) sale has been agreed or is expected to be concluded within 12 months of the Balance Sheet
date.

Subsequently, such non-current assets classified as ‘held for sale’ are measured at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell, except for asset such as Deferred Tax
Asset, Assets arising from employee’s benefit, Financial Assets which are specifically exempt
from this requirement.

Assets classified as held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in the balance
sheet. The liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately from the other
liabilities in the balance sheet.

5.4 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets purchased are initially measured at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets
with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortization is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortization methods are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is de-recognised at disposal, or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Further, the management estimates that the intangible assets
have zero carrying cost at the end of its useful life i.e. zero residual value.

5.5 Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at the inception of a contract.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses

whether:

- the contract involves the use of an identified asset
-the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the

; oo period
o, ). the lease and

4he Company has the right to direct the use of the asset
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315t March 2025

(short-term leases) and leases for low value underlying assets. For these short-term and
leases for low value underlying assets, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
-Where lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the
end of the

lease term, right-of use assets and lease liabilities include those options when it is reasonably
certain that the option to extend the lease will be exercised/option to terminate the lease will
not be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date
of the lease less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for any reassessment of lease
liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

Lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of future lease
payments. Lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. Lease liabilities are re-
measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset if the Company
changes its assessment whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

5.6 Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on straight line method, considering residual
value of 5% of the cost of asset, over the useful lives of the assets, as specified in Schedule IT
of the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of certain categories of assets. The estimated
useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The estimated useful lives are as mentioned below:

Asset Useful life
Excavators 1.2 to 5 Cum used for Hot Slag handling | 5 Years *
Dozer 7 Years *
Excavators 1.2 to 5 Cum Not used for Hot Slag 7 Years *
handling

Cranes 15 Years *
Magnetic Separators 15 Years *
Solar Plants 10 Years *
Other plant and machinery 9.19 Years *

* The Company believes that the technically evaluated useful lives, different from Schedule II
of the Companies Act, 2013, best represent the period over which these assets are expected to be
used.

reciation on addition to/ deletion of assets during the year is provided on Pro-rata basis
reference to the date of addition/deletion.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315t March 2025

n use.

Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and installation
are complete and the asset is ready for its intended use.

Depreciation on capital spares is provided over the useful life of the spare or remaining useful
life of the other asset, as re-assessed, whichever is lower.

Assets costing upto Rs. 4999/- are fully depreciated in the year in which they are put to use.

Software, which is not an integral part of related hardware, if treated as intangible assets and
amortised over a period of 6 years or its license period, whichever is less, without any residual
value.

5.7 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial
asset, other than deferred tax to determine whether there is any indication that the carrying
amount of those assets may not be recoverable through continuing use. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in order to determine the extent of
impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent
from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as and when the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined when no impairment loss have been recognised for the asset (or cash generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the
statement of profit and loss.

5.8 Financial Instruments

5.8.1 Financial Assets:

a) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets, except for trade receivables, are recognised when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. On initial recognition, a financial asset
is recognised at fair value.

N\

tﬂ'\' ade receivables are initially recognised at transaction price as they do not contain a

/ ssignificant financing component. This implies that ive interest rate for these

o ’,J'receivables is zero.

< Private
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315t March 2025

b) Subsequent measurement and classification

The subsequent measurement of a financial asset depends on the classification of the asset on
the basis of business model for managing such assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of such asset. These classifications are:

o amortised cost

o fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

o fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except during the
period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

In case of financial assets which are recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL),
its transaction cost is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the
transaction cost is attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost:

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held
within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income(FVOCI):

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these
financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL):

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income is carried at fair value through profit or loss.

¢) Impairment of financial assets:

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial assets measured at
amortized cost and fair value through other comprehensive income. Loss allowance equal to
the lifetime expected credit losses is recognised if the credit risk on the financial instruments
has significantly increased since initial recognition. For financial instruments whose credit
risk has not significantly increased since initial recognition, loss allowance equal to twelve
months expected credit losses is recognised.

d) De-recognition of financial assets

e Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows
m the asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset gné tially all risks and rewards
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315t March 2025

a)

b)

Kiﬁ 80 (

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognize the financial
asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing of the proceeds received.

5.8.2 Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and financial liabilities at amortized cost, as appropriate, All financial liabilities are
recoguized initially at fair value and, in the case of liabilities subsequently measured at amortized
cost net of directly attributable transaction cost.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classifi cation, as described below:

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

After initial measurement, such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit and Joss
when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or prernium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk is recognized in OCIL.
These gains/losses are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss.

However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity on disposal.
All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit

and loss.

Derecognition:

— '\?&ﬁnancial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
e t'ﬁ__&"ﬁelled or expired. The difference between the carrying yalue of the financial liability and

it and loss.

1e consideration paid is recognised in standalone stat

7
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315t March 2025

d) Offsetting financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

5.9 Inventories

Inventories other than non-moving inventories are valued at cost or estimated net realizable
value whichever is less. The cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition but exclude excise duty , Goods &
Service Tax on such goods where the company is eligible to take cenvat credit in accordance
with rule 3 (1) of the Cenvat Credit Rules’20 04& Input Credit under GST rules.

The inventory items, which have not moved for more than three years, are considered as non-
moving inventories. Non-moving inventories are valued at cost reduced by ten percent of cost
every year from the year 2001-2002. Inventories (store spares) are issued on FIFO basis.

The scrapped / redundant stores items are valued at cost or estimated net realizable value
whichever is lower.

5.10 Employee Benefits
a) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period which the employees render the
related service are recognised in respect of employee’s services up to the end of the reporting
period and re-measured at the amounts to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee benefits obligations in the balance sheet.

b) Other long term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12
month after the end of the period in which the employees render related service. They are
therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit
credit method.

The provision towards future payments to the disabled employee/ legal heirs of deceased
employees under the Employees Family Benefit Scheme is made based on the actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method.

The benefits are discounted using the market yield at the end of the reporting period that have
terms of approximating to the terms of related obligations. Re-measurement as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in statement of
profit and loss.

\‘_'-\ Post-employment obligations
P \
'fhe Company operates the following post-employment s
&

eV

% .
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315t March 2025

i) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity, post-employment medical plans, contributory
post retirement medical scheme and

(i)  Defined contribution plans such as provident funds and FSNL Executives’
Contributory Pension Scheme.

d.) Gratuity obligations

The liabilities or assets recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plan is the
present value of the defined benefits obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefits obligations are calculated annually by actuaries
using projected unit credit (PUC) acturial method.

The present value of defined benefits obligations is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on
Government bonds that are terms approximating to the terms of the related obligations.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discounted rate to the net balance of defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in the retained earnings in the statement of
changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation resulting from amendments and
curtailments are recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss as past service cost.

e.) Post-employment medical obligations

Company provides postretirement healthcare benefits to their retirees. Entitlement to these
benefits is usually conditional on the employees remaining in service up to the retirement age
and the completion of minimum service period. The expected cost of these benefits is accrued
over the period of employment using the same accounting methodology as used for defined
benefit plans. Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited in other comprehensive income in
the period in which they arise.

During the financial year 2024-25, these benefits were discontinued.
Defined contribution plans

Company pays provident fund which is administered by a trust recognised by Income Tax
Authorities and contribution to this fund is charged to revenue. The contributions are
accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Pensioners benefits are secured through Employees’

Pension Scheme 1995.

Brerrd. 1 contribution of this fund is charged to revenue. Th is being managed through Life
s urance Corporation of India.
&

BHILAI
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315t March 2025

5.11 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue from customer contracts are considered for recognition and measurement when the
contract is legally enforceable. Revenue is recognised for amounts the Company expects to be
entitled to in exchange for transferring promised goods and services to a customer excluding
amounts collected on behalf of third parties e.g. Goods and Service Tax. Revenue from
contracts with customers is recognised when the Company satisfies the performance
obligation identified in the contract through transfer of control of the promised goods and
services.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable and recognised
on accrual basis.

Items which are accounted on actual realization since realizability of such items are uncertain
in accordance with the Provisions of the accounting standards are as follows:-

Liquidated damages on Suppliers or contractors.
Interest thereon on Refund of Income Tax.
Interest Income is reported on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.

Unbilled revenue is recognized on the basis of final summary sheet of delivery challans that
are to be submitted to customers for aceeptance on future date.

Service Charges

Service charges represent revenue earned by the Company for processing serap and related
materials, based on rates agreed with / offered to the res pective Steel Plants and other parties.
Any retrospective revision of Service Charges in line with rate revision clause of the agreement
with the customers is accounted for in the year of such revision to the extent such claims are
accepted by the customers.

Where Agreement with Customers is not finalised, the service charges are accounted for on
Provisional basis.

5.12 Income Tax
Income tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.

Current tax is the expected tax payable/receivable on the taxable income/loss for the year

using applicable tax rates for the relevant period, and any adjustment to taxes in respect of

previous years. Interest expenses and penalties, if any, related to income tax are included in

finance costs and other expenses respectively. Interest Income, if any, related to income tax

is included in other income. The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax

rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted in the country where the
Company operates by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount

== _of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used

Mr taxation purposes. A deferred tax liability is recognised based on the expected manner of

B, . 'E;é"'glisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates

. :Td enkcted, or substantively enacted, by the end of the reportingperiod. Deferred tax assets are

GH‘L”/‘,{;EQifognised only to the extent that it is probable tha ] h e profits will be available

Private \;// 7

A on, 83
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315t March 2025

against which the asset can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the
asset and the liability on a net hasis
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset to the extent that they relate to taxes levied by the
same tax authority and there are legally enforceable rights to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities within that jurisdiction.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in the statement of profit
and loss, except when they relate to items credited or debited either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

5-13 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising frorn past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot

be made.

Liabilities which are material and whose future outcome cannot be reasonably ascertained
are treated as contingent and not provided for and disclosed by way of notes to the accounts.
These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current
management estimate considering final disposal of respective cases on merit basis as assessed
by the management.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits
is probable.

Provisions are recognised, where the Company has any legal or constructive ohligation or
where reliable estimate can be made for the amount of the obligation and as a result of past
events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. If it is no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle
the obligation, the provision is reversed.

The provisions for indirect taxes and legal matters comprises of numerous separate cases that
arise in the ordinary course of business, These provisions have not been discounted as it is

-Jot practicable for the Company to estimate the timing of the provision utilisation and cash

@ tflows, if any, pending resolution.

A\
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315t March 2025

5.14 Provision for Doubtful Advances

Provision against advances will be made wherever such advances is considered doubtful in
the opinion of management. Writing back of liabilities/ provisions will be made wherever such
liability/provision is considered no longer required in the opinion of management.

5.15 Statements of Cash Flows

The statement of cash flow is prepared by using the indirect method as prescribed in IND AS
7, whereby profit for the year is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature,
any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of
income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. The Company
considers all highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
to be cash equivalents.

5.16 Segment Reporting

Company is engaged in the business of Scrap Recovery and Allied Jobs in various Steel Plants
in India, which is the principal business activity of the company. Beside scrap recovery and
allied job. However as per Para 11 of Ind AS (108) i.e. “operating segment”, a business segment
should be identified as a reportable segment if its reported revenue, including both sales to
external customers and intersegment sales or transfers, is 10 percent or more of the combined
revenue, internal and external, of all reporting segments.

Further as regard to geographical segment, the primary criteria as envisaged in the accounting
standard are being considered of which details are as follows:
i.  Similarity of economic and political conditions
ii.  Relationship between operations in different geographical areas
iii.  Proximity of operations
iv.  Special risks associated with operations in particular area
v.  Exchange control regulations
vi.  Underlying currency risks.

Since the company is rendering services to units that are subject to same economical and
political conditions and are therefore exposed to same operational risks viz. exchange control
regulations, underlying currency risks, proximity of operations etc. Accordingly relationship
between operations in different geographical areas does not differ from each other and
therefore is not relevant for the company or the management.

5.17 Earnings Per Share
The earning per share and diluted earnings per share is caleulated as per Ind AS 33.

Basic earning per share is computed by dividing profit after tax for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the
) period
TN , _ :
/& =~/ For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit after tax for the period
(E( ot \ “attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding

e
o~

ikfnfm ‘uring the period are adjusted for the effects of all potentjaldilutive equity shares.
g Page | 18
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 315t March 2025

5.18 Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are cash in hand, balances with bank and short-term deposits
(original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), that are readily
convertible into cash.

5.19 Other equity

Components of other equity include the following;:

Re-measurement of defined benefit liability comprise the actuarial gain or loss from changes
in demographic and financial assumptions and return on plan assets.

Other transactions recorded directly in Other Comprehensive Income,
Retained earnings include all Current and Prior Period retained Profits.

5.20 Adjustment Pertaining to Earlier year

Income /Expenditure relating to Prior Period, which do not exceed Rs. 5.00 Lakhs in each
case, is treated as Income/Expenditure of Current year.

5.21 Provision of Trade Receivable

FSNL undertakes the job of recovery and processing of Scrap from Slag and refuse generated
during iron and steel making at Steel Plants. Commercial invoices are raised on fulfillment of
contractual obligation and there is no dispute about the service rendered by FSNL. Sometimes
the realisation of Debtors takes more time due to liquidity crunch of the stee] plants.

Provision for doubtful receivable based on expected credit loss is as under.

e of Debtors Amount of provisioning
6 Months to 1 year 50%
More than 1 year 100%

The policy will be effective from F.Y. 2024-25.
The policy is for accounting purposes only.

5.22 Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has notified the following new amendments to Ind AS
which the Company has not applied as they are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after April 1, 2025. The notification amended Ind AS 21 “The effects of changes in foreign
exchange rates”

The notification explains the following:
Exchangeable definition
Estimating the spot exchange rate when a currency is not exchangeable into another currency.

Disclosures requirements when an entity estimates a spot exchange rate because a currency
is not exchangeable into another currency

" .« Recognition of effect of initially applying the amendments

N

B
0 e :

£ ) jf}‘aragraph 31Cand point (b) of Paragraph D27 of Appendix D ofInd AS 101 are amended and
i / Paragraph 39Al is inserted in Ind AS 101. S
4 . ’.(\t 5

&
V4
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FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

CIN: U27102CT1979FTCO05468

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

{(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

8 Right of use assets - Leases
Company as a lessee

The Company has entered into agreement with lessor for taking land on lease for a period 33 years. Measurement of right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities are calculated based on the fixed lease rentals payable under the lease agreements and

romnnnant fnwards maintenanra and anv variahle navmente are ayrludad

The Company does not have any leases for a term of 12 months or less and of low value.

Right of use assets

Particulars Total
Land "
Right of use assets
Cost
Costas at 1 April 2023 488.75 488.75
Additions 18.89 18.89
Deduction / Adjustments B -
As at 31 March 2024 507.63 507.63
Additions -
Deduction / Adjustments 5 =
As at 31 March 2025 507.63 507.63
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated depreciation as at 19.70
1 April 2023 19.70
Charge far the year 15.32 15.32
Deduction / Adjustments -
As at 31 March 2024 35.02 35.02
Charge for the year 15.36 15.36
Deduction / Adjustments - -
As at 31 March 2025 50.38 50.38
Carrying amount
As at 01 April 2023 469.05 469.05
As at 31 March 2024 472.61 472.61
As at 31 March 2025 457.25 457.25
(i) Amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet
As at As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

01 April 2023

Lease liabilities

Opening balance 310.05 556.31 556.31
Additions - - -
Interest expense for the year 28.04 30.93 c
Lease rent paid during the year* (35.04) (277.19) -
Total of lease liabilities 303.05 310.05 556.31

¥ The lease rent payment include onetime non-refundable premium amounting to Rs. 247.49 lakhs as at March 31, 2024.

The following is the break up of current and non current lease liabilities:

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2025| 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
CERgtes
«{Current AN 1.83 7.00 246.27
é’( NBp-Curhenit | 301.22 303.05 310.04
F c.0 « |
), [Totard#ease liabilities 303.05 310.05 556.31
N
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FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)
CIN: U27102CT1979FTCO05468
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
(ii) Amounts recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
The statement of profit or loss shows the following amount relating to leases:

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 15.37 15.32
Interest expense on lease liability 28.04 30.93

Note : The aggregate depreciation on right-of-use assets has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in

the statement of profit and loss.
(iii) Amounts recognized in the Statement of cash flows

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cash outflow for leases (35.04) (277.19)

(iv) The details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2025, March 31, 2023 and April 1,

WS:

As at
31 March 2025

Particulars

Lease liabilities

Asat
31 March 2024

As at
01 April 2023

Less than one year 29.70 35.04 277.19
One to five years 148.50 148.50 153.84
Morethanifive years 705.11 734.81 764.51
e AN 883.31 918.35 1,195.54
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FSNL Private Limited (formeriy known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)
CIN: U27102CT1879FTCO0E468
Motes forming part of the financlal statements for the yaar ended 31 March 2025
{Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless ptherwise stated)

@ |Other financial assets As at Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 04 April 2023
Naon-currant Current Hon-current Current Non-current Current
Unsacured, considered good
Security deposits 2662 273.07 26.52 7.64 25,50 107
Bank deposits with riginal maturity of more than 12 months® . - 218000 7.640.00 A
Interast accruad on loans and advancas . - - - 2
Term deposits 45841 = 579.79 - 105850
Leans to employees 0.02 00?2 0.37 058 0.06
Other loans and advances - - = 4 a
Loans to employees - . o001 001 0.25
Advance to employees 36.51 - 36.62 - 2236
Total other financlal assets 26.62 ’.“‘!’_ﬂﬂ.L Z,2=DE_,5l G24.43 7,666.19 1,082.24
10 |Deferred tax assats (nat) As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 Aol 2023
136258 97250 67531
‘The balance comprises y differences ble to:
Deferred tax assels
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 18839 126,90 £9.38
Other financial assets 471 473 =
Lease Liabilities 76.27 78.03 14001
Other non-current assats 58,03 58.03 =
Trade receivable 601.50 224.00 13478
Other current Uabilities 163.60 11413 .
Pravisions 385.17 485.63 460.19
Total deferred tax assets (A) 1,477.67 1,091.45 793.36
Deferred tax labilities
Right-of-use assets (115.08) (118.95) (118.05)
Total deferred tax fiabllitles (B} (115,08) {118.95) (118.05)
Deferred tax assets (ne -B] !.|382.50 972.50 675.31
Movement in deferred tax balances
Particulars As at R ised in R in other Asat
01 April 2023 tat t of profit Incoma 31 March 2024
and loss account
Right-of-use assets (118.05) {0.90) - (118.95)
Property, piant and equipment and Intangible assets 59.38 67.52 - 126.90
Lease labllitles 14001 {61.98) . 78.03
Other financial assets - 473 - 4.73
Trade receivable 13478 8o.22 - 22400
Other non-current assets - 58.03 - 58,03
Other current liabilities 114.13 11413
Pravisions 45919 70.14 (43.70) 485,63
[ [Deferred taxssssts (nel) 575.31 34089 872,50
Particulars As at Recognised in Recognised In ather As at
31 March 2024 statement of profit | comprehensive Income 31 March 2025
_and loss account
Right-of-use assets (118.95) 387 . (115.08)
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 12690 61.49 188.39
Lease liabilities 7803 {176) . 76.27
Other financial assets 473 {0.02) - 471
Trade receivable 22400 37750 - 601.50
Other non-currant assets 5803 - 58.03
Other current Liabilities 11413 49,47 - 163,60
Pravisions 48563 23292 (333.38) 38517
972,50 723.47 _(333.38) el 362,50 |
11 [MNon-current tax assets (net) Asat As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April2023 |
Advance Income tax [net of provision] 1,301.90 617,56 1,690.53
517, 1.589.53 |
12 |Other assets As at As at As at
a 4 01 Apr| 3
MNan-current Currant MNan-current Current Non-current Current
Prepayments 9.94 G042 5.95 232,45 631 201.90
Balance with statutery/government authorities -
GST input tax Credit - £48.06 182.92 - 250.84
Others-(Advance with Public bodies) = 235.00 244.69 = 24557
Other advances - - = - z
Advances to employees - 6107 57.51 - 5783
Advances to suppliers and service providers - 26,28 3rez - 4438
Corporate Soclal Responsibility - B77 ¥ = .
Total other assets 9.94 1,237.60 5.05 785.39 6.31 808.52
13 |Inventories As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 Aprit2023 |
Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value
Stores and Spares 468.60 465.63 43463
Stock of Non-Moving Inventory 11390 116,62 159.49
Stores and Spares - Awailing Dispasal - 1885 1438
Inventory Shortage - 014 0.14
Stack in Transit - 1635 E
Provision = = 3
stock of non-moving 64.94 6332 8162
y shortage - 01 014
stores and Spares - Awaiting Disposal - 16.45 1221
Total inventories 517.56 537.68 514.67
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Natas forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in TNR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

14 |Trade recelvables As at As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023 |
Unsecured
-considered good 972998 1507532 7.409.84
-considered doubtful 53367 890.01 1,247.54
10,263.65 15,965.33 B,747.38
Credit Impalred
-Credit impairad 238993 890.01 53554
Less: Allowance for credit impalred (2,389.93) (890.01) (535.54)
Total trade recelvables 10.263 65 15.9656.33 8.747.38 |
Trads receivables ageing schedule :
As at 34 March 2025
Particulars Gutstanding for following perleds from due date of payment
Not dus Less than 6 Months | 6 months - 1 year i-2years 2-3years More than 3 years Total
Undi trade receivables - idered qood 428858 f441.40 - - - B 972998
Undi: trade R bles = doubtiul ) - 533167 T 5 - 53367
Undisputed trade Receivables - credit impaired - . 533.68 9.51 66.73 1.780.01 2.389.93
Less: All for credit impai and exp credit loss (533.68) (9.51) (66.73) {1,780.01) {2,389.93
Total 4,288.58 5,441.40 533.67 - - - 10,263.65
As at 31 March 2024
[Particulars Butstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not due Less than 6 Months [ 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2 -3 years More than 3 years Total
Undisg trade receivables - considered good 411530 9.041.20 185209 6673 - . 1507532
Undisputed trade Receivables - doubtful - - - - . 890.01 590.01
Undisputed trade Receivables - credit impaired - . - - - 850.01 890.01
Less: Allowance for credit impairment and expacted credit loss (890.01) (B90.01)
Total 4,115.30 9,041.20 1,852.09 66.73 = 8950.01 15,965.33
As at 01 April 2023
Particulars &] ding for periods from due date of p. t
Not due Less than 6 Months | 6 months - 1 year 1-2years 23 years Moras than 3 years Total
Undisputed trade receivables - considered good 3.503.24 3.085.40 - - - 7.20 7.499,84
Undisputed trade Recelvables - doubtful = - - - - 1.247.54 1.247.54
Undisputed trade Receivables - credit Impaired - - - - - 53554 536.54
Less: Allowance for credit impairment and expected credit loss (535.54) (535.54)
Total 3,503.24 3,989.40 - - - 1,254.74 B8,747.38
in d credit loss
Particulars Allowance for
(f cradit loss
As at 01 April 2023 535.54
Additlons during the year 35447
Utilisation during the vear -
83001
Additions during the year 1,499.93
Utilisation during the year =
As at 31 March 2025 2380.93 |
15 |Cash and cash equivalents Asat As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023 |
|Balances with banks.
in current accounts 6,885.03 1,553.62 2,722.00
Deposit Account
Bank deposits with original maturity of upto 3 months = 4 £
Total cash and cash LT ulvalents 5,885.03 1,553.62 2,722.00
16 |Bank batances other than cash and cash equivalents As at Asat As at
31 March 2025 34 March 2024 01 April 2023
Bank deposits with eriginal maturity of more than 3 but less than 12 months * 1042855 8.126.08 7.98267
Total bank balances other than cash and cash ﬂulﬂlanh 10!428.55 8,126.98 7,.8992.67
17 |Contractassets As at As at As at
31 March 2025 3iMarch2024 1 01Aoril2023
Unbillad revenue® 4,346.67 4,268.05 4,22091
Total contract assets tlaqn.u-r ﬁ_ﬁ!.BS 422091
*Unbilled revenue represents services provided ta custamers that have not yet been bitled,
18 |Assats classified as held for sale As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Assets classified as held for sale; 253.30 283.25 232.90
Furniture & Fixtures — 001 001 001
Office Equipment 4,59 3.47 347
242,68 273563 22415
6,02 615 528
154 3389 4,95
251.76 24936 ﬂ
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Hotes forming part of the financlal statsmants for the year ended 31 March 2025
‘Amounts In INR Lakhs, uniess otherwisa stated)

i

(&)

«

(=)

20

Equity share capital
Particulars As at As at As at
21 March 2028 A4 Marrh 2024 04 Anell 2N

Authorised squity share cagital

50,000,000 (31 March 2025: 50,000,000 ;31 March 2024: S0.000,000 ; 01 April 2023: 50,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 5,000.00 5.000.0:0 5,000,00
Issued, subscribwd and fully paid up equity share capital - % =
32,000,000 (31 March 2025: 32,000,000 ; 31 March 2024: 32,000,000 + 01 April 2023: 32,000,000) equity shares of Rs, 10 each 3.20000 3,200.00 320000
Total 3,200.00 3,200.00 3,200.00
Recanclllation of shares sutstanding at the baginning and at the end of of the reporting period As at 31 March 2028 As at 31 March 2024 As at 01 April 2023

Equity share Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount Numbar of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 3,20,00,000 3,200.00 3,20,00,000 3,200,00 3,20,00,000 3,200,00
1ssued during the year 3 . 5 . = =

Taotal 3,20, E 2!0 3 iEﬂ.Dc 3,20,00,000 3,200.00 3,20,00,000 3,200.00
Shares held by holding /ultimate holding or of the holding or the As at 31 March 2025 Asat 31 March 2024 As at 01 April 2023

dtichata holdl

Equily shares Number of shares % of holdin, Number of shares % of holding HNumbar of shares % of holding
Konolke Transpart Co. LT, immediate and ultimats holding company) 31999993 99.99% . - S =

Konaike India Private Limited (subsidiary of its Immediate and ultimate helding company) 1 E - =
MSTC Ltd. ** - 3.19,99,200 08.60% 3,10,00.000 90.00%
Suchit Kumar Barnwal{Nominee of MSTC Ltd = 100 100
Details of shareholders nolding mors than 5% of the sharss In ths Com,
Mama of the sharab As ak 31 March 2025 Asat 31 March 2024 As at 01 Aocil 2023

Equity sharas Number of shares | % of holding In | Number of shares | % of holding Intha | Number of shares | % of holding In the

the class class class

Konoike Transport Co. LTD, 3.1999,909 29.99%

MSTC Ltd. - 3,19,99,900 S9.99% 3,19.99,900 99.99%
Detalls of sharaholding of promoters

Hama of the sharaholder Asat 31 March 2025 Asmt 31

Humber of shares | % of total number % of change Number of shares | % of total number | % of change during Numbaer of shares
of shares during the year of sh: the year

Konolke Transpart Co, LTD, 3,19,00,009 90.99% 100% - s
MSTC Ltd, - F -100% 3,19.99,900 §9.99% . 3.19,99.900 99.99%
Total 3,19,99,999 99,99% 3, 19i99lﬂﬂﬂ 99.99% 3,19,99,900 89.99%

* Nil due to rounding off,
** Refer note number 1 for change of awnership during the year.

to equity shares:

Rights, aref and

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of T 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote

Board of Directors s subject to the approval of the shareholders In the efnsuing Annual General Meeting.
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of aquity shares will be entitled to recelve an
currently, The distrbution will be In proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharehalders,

per share, The Company declares and pays dividends in Indlan rupees. The dividend propased by the

y of the remalining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. However, no such preferential amounts exist

Other squity
Particulars General Reserva Total other equity
Balance as at 01 April 2023 19,300.51 18,602.03
Profit for the year ended 31 March 2024 E 659631
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax - {43.70)
Total comprahensivea incoma for the year ended 31 March 2024 - 6,552.61
Final dividend (FY 22-23) - (1.280.00)
1st Interim dividend (FY 23-24) - {640.00)
2nd Interim dividena (FY 23-24) - - (640.00)
Transfer to general reserve oo = X 3,08000 :
Balance as at 31 March 20p4 2 W' HTEE SN 116.03 2,479.51 22,595,654
Profit for the year ended 6,296.40 - 6,296.40
Other comprehensive (o (333.38) . (333.38)
Dividerd - g .
Tatal comprehansiva 5,063.02 = 5,963.02
(5,940.00) 5.940.00 -
139.05 28,419.51 28,558,568
93 Page 26



FSNL Private Limited (formeriy known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

CIN: U27102CTi970FTCO05468

Notes forming part of the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Arnounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwlse stated)

21 |Other financlal Uabllties (Current) As at As at Asat
31 March 2025 34 March 2024 1 01 Aqdi2n23
Employee payables 111028 1,394.54 142458
‘Security deposis and EMD 740.20 782,12 624.56
Capital credjtors 362.03 16054 318 |
Total other financlal Uablities 2.212.51 2,337, 2052.41 |
22 |Provislons As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 As at01 April 2023
Neon-current Current Hen-current Currant Non-current Current
Provislon for employes benefits:
Defined benefit obligations
-Employeas family benefit scheme 51933 19396 609.48 199.18 B97.32 21007
-Pravision far gratulty 408 58 - (74.12) = (105.29) #
-Provision for leave encashment 154984 16717 100243 23241 2,091.14 16339
Retiramaent benefit obllgations - - . - - -
-Post retirement medical benefit . - 4,644,798 257.25 4,863.58 34.70
-Contributary post retirement medical benefit - - 484.81 23156 234.48 10.49
-Other retirement banefit 3554 476 39.28 7.10 47.26 4.90
Other employee benefits X ¥ > 5 = 5
-Long service awards 2043 213 6.66 0.75 474 043
-Additional resource generation scheme- non-executive c: 58.18 - 55,03 - 58.51
-Parformance related pay B 283.00 43371 - 30442
-Wage revision - - = - . 5.518.22
Other Provisions - 282436 481.80 - 28537
Total provisions 2,531.72 3,523.56 7‘213.31 l‘ﬁio.'ﬂ' 7,833.23 6,680.50
23 |Trade payables (Current) Asat Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Trade payable for goods and services 2.718.92 4,773.94 3,816.12
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises * 180.40 42776 182.07
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 253952 4346.18 363405
Total trade Eaxahl.is 2,719.92 4,773.94 3,816.12
Trade payables ageing schedula
Asat 31 March 2028
Outs! T ng perio m due date of payment
Partlculars Unbitled Not Due Less than & Year 1.2 Years 2.3 Years Mare than 3 Years Toent
(I} Undisputed dues - micre and small enterprises 10,47 156.75 13.04 014 - - 180.4
{il} Undisputed dues - othars 9839 1,764 62 B75.40 - - 011 2539.52|
(i) Disputed dues - microand small entarprises - = - . . =} =
(iv) Disputed dues - others - = - a _ 5. i
Total 108.66 1,921.37 689.44 0.14 - 0.11 2,719.92
As at 31 March 2024
far periods from due date of payment
| Unbilled Total
Fartieuars it Not e Less than 1 Year 1-2Years 2 -3 Years Mare than 3 Years i
() Undisputed dues - micro and small enterprises 34.45 373.29 16.39 - 012 3.53 427.76
(i) Undisputed dues - others 166.61 3,487.25 54483 184 201 143.85 4,346.18
(lif) Oisputed dues - micro and small entarprises - - - - . - =
(Iv) Disputed dugs - Others . - - + - = =
Total 201.06 3,860.52 561.02 1.84 2.13 147.38 4,773.04
As at 01 April 2023
[<] for following periods from due date of payment
Unblll Total
iz ki Nt ow Less than 1 Year 1-2Years 2 -3 Years More than 3 Years
{i} Undisputed dues - micro and small anterprises 1579 146.40 14.36 012 - 5.40 18207
(if) Undisputed dues - others 163.37 223548 1,067.66 4.45 140 161.72 3,634.05
(Ilf) Disputed dugs - micro and small enterprises - - - b - = E
(1v) Disputed dues - Others - * 2 . - - k-
Tatal 179.16 2,381.85 1,082.02 4.57 1.40 167.12 3,8i6.12
Detalls of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Med|um Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('MSMED Act')
dence with Its « tha

The Ministry of Micro and Small Enterprises (MSE') has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the MSE should mentlon In thelr

Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allotted aftar filing of the Memorandum. Accardingly, the dlsclosure In respect of the amounts payabla to such enterprises as at 31 March 2025 has been made In the financial
based on recelved and available with the Company. Further in the view of the management, the Impact of interest, if any, that may be payable In accordance with the provisions of the said Act is

nat expected to be material. The Company has not recelved any clalm for Interest from any supplier under the said Act,

The dues to mlcro and small enterprises as required under MSMED Act, 2006, based on the Information avallable with the Company, |5 given below:

Particulars Asat Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
1 The principal amount ramalning unpaid ta any supplier a3 at the end of each accounting year 180 .40 427.76 182.07
2. The Interest amount remalning unpald to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year . . -
3. Amount of Interest paid in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond s ¥ .
the appointed day during aach accounting year
4. Amount of Interest dus and payable for the period of delay in making payment (Which has besn pald but beyend the appointed day during 3 4 .

the year) but without
adding the Interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2005
6. The amount of Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year

6. Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even |n the succeeding years, until such date when the Interest dues as above are
actually pald to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of MSMED Act, 2006

The information has been given In respect of such vendars to the extent they could be identified as micro and small enterprises as per MSMED on the basis of Information avallable with the Company,

24 |Other labilities (Current) Asat Asat Asat
31 March 2025 | 34 March 2024 01 Aoril 2023 |
Pension for executive 1A 10 17405 1R AT
Pensbon for non executive RANNA A53 4R -
y dues payable - = -
-TDS and TCS payable 5828 253.82 213.02
<Provident fund payable 14002 156.18 152.38
-G5T payable 740,50 935.71 G45.80
Others liabilities 043 0.83 -
Total other Uabilllies s o T 174937 197815
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

25 |Revenue from operations

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024 (Restated)

Sale of services

45,895.18

43,461.01

Total revenue from operations

45,895.18

43,461.01

The Company generates revenue from customer contracts by providing services aver time through

its available service offerings..

Details of services rendered

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024 (Restated)

Processing of Scrap & other items 45,895.18 43,461.01
Total 45,895.18 43,461.01
25.1 |Disaggregation of revenue based on timing of recognition of revenue:
a|Products/Services transferred at point in time - -
b|Products/Services transferred over time 45,895.18 43,461.01
Total 45,895.18 43,461.01
25.2 |Reconciliation of revenue recognised in statement of profit and loss with contracted price
Revenue as per contracted price 45,895.18 43,461.01
Less: Varlable consideration (including consideration payable to i
customer) =
Total 45,895.18 43,461.01
25.3 |Contract balances
The following table provides information about contract assets from contract with customers
Contract Assets
Unbilled revenue
As at 1 April 2023 4,220.91
Add: Addition during the year 4,268.05
Less: Utilised during the year 4,220.91
As at 31 March 2024 4,268.05
Add: Addition during the year 4,346.67
Less: Utilised during the year 4,268.05
4,346.67

As at 31 March 2025

26 |Other income For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 1 March 4 (R
Interest on fixed deposit 892.49 890.83
Gain on sale of fixed assets 8.90 12.86
Unwinding of discount on security deposits 0.10 0.09
Liabilities/provisions no longer required written back 771.04 2,336.21
Miscellaneous income* 106.21 70.77
Total other income 1,778.74 3,310.76
3 Miscellaneous income mainly constitute interest on income tax, employee recoverable, income from scrap sale and others.
27 |Operational Expenses For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024 (Restated)

Lancing tubes 30.75 31.43
Oxygen and acetylene 306.44 295,71
Lubricants 177.30 173.563
Diesel and gasoline 4,739.38 457442
Stores and spare parts . 1,267.09 1,125.42
Water & power m (Ol 105.07 107.19
Total operational exfensés . . \ 2| 6,626.03 6,307.70
>.C « )l
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

28 |Employee benefit expenses Faor the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 (Restated)
Salaries and wages 6,783.39 8,650.63
Contribution to PF and other funds 622.32 637.72
Contribution to gratuity fund 55.19 53.69
Staff welfare expenses 1,813.37 1,859.47
Total employee benefit expenses 9,274.27 11,201.51
29 |Finance costs For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 (Restated)
Interest
- on lease liabilities (refer note 8) 28.04 30.93
Other finance cost 1.55 -
Total finance costs 29.59 30.93
30 |Depreciation and amortization expense For the year ended Faor the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 (Restated)
Depreciation of
- Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (Refer note 3 1:701.37 1,683.09
- Right-of-use assets (Refer note 5) 15.37 15.32
Total depreciation and amortization expense 1,716.74 1,698.41
31 |Other expenses For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 (Restated)
Cost of Services throuah outside aaency 175.67 153.75
Equipment rent 14,784.24 13,820.27
Freight charges 44.19 64.70
Hiring of manpower for operational activities 1,924.75 1,478.05
Repair & Maintenance-Machinery 1,174.46 1,054.35
Repair & Maintenance-Building 9.02 41.26
Repair & Maintenance-Office Equipment 2511 27.19
Repair & Maintenance-Vehicle 10.99 9.94
Insurance 193.35 163.79
Rates and taxes 50.92 90.90
Travelling and conveyance 51.51 70.36
Security Services 476.60 465.81
Telephone expenses 23.00 35.39
Printing and stationery 39.35 3114
Legal and professional 13463 39.99
Auditor's remuneration (refer note a below) 6.49 6.49
Provision for assets awaiting for disposal 58.66 65.33
Pravision for doubtful debt 1,499.93 356.00
Advertising 0.27 6.82
Corprate social responsibility expenditure (refer note b below) 130.00 “
Miscellaneous expenses == : 739,
T N 758.38 39.99
Total other expenses /7 - ———_ C A\ 21,571.52 18,721.52
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FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)
CIN: U27102CT1979FTCO05468

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

a Details of payments to auditors For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 (Restated)
Statutory audit fee 2.76 2.76
Tax audit fee 0.42 0.42
Out of pocket expenses 331 304
Total payments to auditors 6.49 6.49
b Corporate sacial responsibility expenditure {CSR)

a. CSR amount required to be spent during the year as per section

135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII thereof by

the Company during the year is Rs. 130.00 lakhs (previous year : Rs. 92.00 lakhs)
b. Expenditure related to corporate social responsibility expenditure is Rs. 130.00 lakhs (previous year : Rs. Nil)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 (Restated)
i) Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 130.00
92.00
i) Amount of expenditure incurred during the year* E

i) Shartfall at the end of the year
iv) Total of previous years shortfall
v) Reason for shortfall

vi) Nature of CSR activities

vii) Details of related party transactions, e.g. contribution to a trust
controlled by the Company in relation to CSR expenditure as per
relevant Accounting Standard

viii) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred
by entering into a contractual obligation, the movements in the
provision during the year shall be shown separately

130.00

Not applicable
The Company has distributed
six ambulances as part of its
commitment to the ‘Health
and Nutrition' theme approved
by the Department of Public
Enterprises (DPE) for
Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) activities in the financial
year 2024-25, as per the Office
Memorandum (OM) F. No.
8/2/2018-Dir (CSR) dated 15th
March 2024

Not applicable

In accordance with the
recommendation of the CSR
Monitoring Committee, a Board
resolution was passed on 1st April
2020 for a contribution of Rs, 500
Lakhs to the PM CARES Fund
during the financial year 2020-
21.As per the guidelines, FSNL is
not required to undertake any
additional CSR activities for the
financial year 2023-24. The CSR
expenditure of Rs. 92 Lakhs for FY
2023-24 shall be set off against
the excess CSR expenditure
incurred in FY 2020-21, thereby
fulfilling the CSR requirements for
the year.

Particulars

Paid in cash

Yet to be paid in cash

For the year ended31 March 2025

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset

On purpose other than (i) above

136.77

For the year ended31 March 2024 (Restated)

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset

On purpose other than (i) above

* Total amount spend on
Rs. 6.77 is prepaid for ;

o

97

I 'QM year FY 2024-25 was RS. 136.77 lacs out of which Rs. 130.00 lacs Is for the FY 2024-25 and
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

32 [Income tax expense For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 (Restated)

A [Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Current tax 2.549.46 251258

Deferred tax charge/(credit) (390.09) (297.19)

Total 2,159.37 2,215.39
B Amounts recognised in the other comprehensive income

Income tax on remeasurement loss of post employment defined (112.13) (14.70)

benefit plans

Total (112.13) (14.70)
C  |Total tax expense (A+B) 2,047.24 2,200.69
D |Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit before tax 8,455.77 8,811.70

Enacted statutory income tax rate 25.168% 25.168%

Tax expense 2,128.15 2,217.72

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible in calculating

taxable income

Corporate social responsibility expenditure 32.72 -

Interest on statutory dues 0.03 ®

Donation 0.16 0.38

Deduction (Bhilai Unit) 0.79 *

Other Provision (2.48) (2.71)

Tax expense 2,159.37 2,215.39
33 |Earnings per share For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 (Restated)

Profit for the year 6,296.40 6,596.31

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic 320 320

EPS and diluted EPS

Earnings per equity share in INR (Nominal value of INR 10

each)

Basic (INR) 20.61

Diluted (INR) 20.61

M"S
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FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

CIN: U27102CT1979FTCO05468

Notes forming part of the financial statements far the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

34 Disclosure of defined benefit obligation as per Ind AS 19

a)

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans
Defined contribution plans: An amount of Rs, 980.90 lakhs for the
employer’s contribution to provident fund, pension
recognised as an expense and included in

year ended March 31, 2025 (Rs, 1270.23 lakhs for March 31, 2024) pertaining to
fund, executive contributory pension scheme and non-executive contributory pension scheme are
'Employee benefits expanses’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

‘or the year ended 31 | For the year ended 31
Benefit (Contribution to) E Matth 026 m:t K 3024
Provident Fund and Pension Fund 622.32 B637.72
FSNL Executives' Contributory Pension Scheme 162.00 179.05
FSNL Non- Executives' Contributory Pension Scheme 196.58 453.46
Total 980.90 1,270.23

Defined Benefit Plans

1. Leave encashment

It is payable on separation to eligible employees,
commuted as per DPE Guidelines for calculation
calendar year.

2. Gratuity

shall be limited to 300 days (Earned Leave and Half-Pay Leave combined), and HPL shall not be
of 300 days limit. Encashment of accumulated earned leave is also allowed up to 90 days once in a

The Gratuity is payable on separation at the rate of 15 days pay for each completed year of service to eligible employees who render continuous service
for a minimum period of 5 years and up to 30 years. The Gratuity is calculated at the rate of one month's wages last drawn by the employee for every

completed year of service in excess of 30 years. The maximum amount of Gratuity payable to e

The Gratuity Is funded with LIC of India. The company has done actuarial valuation of Gratuity

3. Employee family benefit scheme

Monthly payment to disabled separated employees / legal heirs of deceased employees in lieu of

superannuation of deceased employees,

4. Contributory scheme for post retirement medical facilities (Domiciliary):

mployee is Rs. 20.00 lakhs.

Fund in accordance with Ind AS 19,

prescribed deposit till the notional date of

The payment of medical facilities (Domiciliary) to the separated executives as covered under contributory scheme for post retirement medical facilities

(domiciliary) for executives.
This Plan has been removed effectively
5. Post retirement medical benefit:

during the Financial year 2024-25 by making the balan

ce payment.

The Post Retirement Medical Benefit is a medical benefit to the superannuated employees and their spouse. This is available to superannuated employees

at any hospital under the Mediclaim Insurance Policy.
This Plan has been removed effectively during the Financial year 2024-25 by making the balan

6. Post retirement settlement benefit
It is payable to retiring employees for settlement at their declared home town.

7. Long term service award
1t is payable in kind for rendering minimum 25 years of service and also on superannuation.

ce payment.

Investment

Fiek at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. When there is a dee

below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields
p market for such bonds and if the return on plan asset is

The defined benefit plan Liability calculated uses a discount rate based on

k
el e

government bonds. If bond yields fail, the defined benefit plan

L it
SIENE Xk bath during and after thelr employment. An increase in the

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants
life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated b

y reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an

Salary risk

increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

Leave Encashment

Particulars ; i As at As at As at
v 31 March 2025| 34 March 2024 01 April 2023
Present value of liability & = AN / <! — ?O 1,707.01 2.134.84 2,254.53
f/ m N\ m
get (un AT 1,707.01 2.134.84 2.254,53 |
Page 32



FSNL Private Limited (farmerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)
CIN: U27102CT1979FTCO05468

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts In INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A Movement in present values of defined benefit liability ‘Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Defined benefit obligation at beainning of vear 2,134.84 2,254.53 2,379.92
% Current service cost 275.31 295.90 324.79
3 Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation 118.45 141.17 129.91
4 Actuarial loss/(qain) - experience (34.17) (103.97) 95,27
5 Actuarial loss/(gain) - demoqraphic assumptions - =
6 Actuarial loss/(qain) - financial assumptions 97.95 79.77 (106.28)
7 Benefits paid by the Company (885.37) (532.56) (569.08)
DBO at the end of current vear 1.707.01 2.1 2.254.53 |
B Expense recognized in statement of profit and loss Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Current service cost 275.31 295.90 32479
2 Net interest on net defined banefit liability 118.45 141.17 129.91
3 Immediate recognition of(gain)/losses - other long term employee benefit pla 63.78 (24.20) (11.01)
Cost recognized in statement of profit and loss 457.64 412.87 443.69
C Expense recognized in the other comprehensive income Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
l: Actuarial loss/(gain) due to experience adjustment (34.17) (103.97) 95.27
2 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to demographic assumption changes - * =
3 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to financial assumption changes 97.95 79.77 (106.28)
4 Actuarial loss/(gain) arising during the period 63.78 (24.20) (11.01)
Actuarial loss/(gain) recagnized via OCI at current year end - - -
D Defined benefit cost Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Current service cost 275.31 295.90 324.79
2 Net interest on net defined benefit liability 118.45 14117 129.91
3 Actuarial loss/(gain) recognized in other comprehensive income = * 2
4 Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses - other long term employee benefit p 63.78 (24.20) (11.01)
Defined benefit cost 457.54 412.87 443.69
E Expected benefit payments far the year ending As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 ApriL2023
1st following year 162.20 240.41 169.09
2nd following year 304.50 346.99 497.97
3rd following year 21291 323.29 414.32
4th following year 213.51 236.55 443.18
5th following year 227.97 248.08 350.98
6th following year and onwards 681.49 911.40 1,789.01
()] Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation (years) 4.00 4.00 5
(ii) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
a Discount rate
Discount rate (in %) 6.50% 7.00% 7.10%
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in discount rate (83.21) (100.40) (106.55)
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in discount rate 93.23 112.22 118.78
b Salary escalation rate
Salary escalation rate first year (in %) 10% 10% 10%
Salary escalation rate thereafter (in %) 6% 6% 6%
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase In salary escalation rate 92.24 111.567 11817
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in salary escalation rate (83.85) (101.61) (107.91)
i s 60 60 60
c Retirement age (in ye 7 P q-j, v{ :
d Mortality rate N\ P IALM (2006-08) Ultimate
T g1
co _.[' j‘
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FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

CIN: U27102CT1979FTCOD5468

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

b)

Gratuity
The following tables summaries the position of Uabilities relating to plans:
Particulars As at As at As at
31
Present value of liabitity 4,589.02 5,238.15 5,914.66
Fair Value of assets at the end of current period (4,182.44) (5,312.27) (6,019.95)
LEunded Status 406.58 (74.12) (105.29)
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Present value of liability 4,589.02 5,238.15 5,914.66
Liability recognized in balance sheet (unfunded obligation) 4,589.02 5,238.15 5,014.66
A Movement in present values of defined benefit liability Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year 5,238.15 5,914.66 6,918.20
2 Current service cost 61.08 61.88 123.67
3 Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation 315.19 380.97 388.59
4 Actuarial loss/(gain) - experience 328.79 (70.56) (3.61)
5 Actuarial loss/(gain) - demographic assumptians . -
6 Actuarial loss/(gain) - financial assumptions 116.72 48.91 (210.81)
7 Benefits paid from plan asset (1,470.91) (1,097.71) (1,301.38)
DBO at the end of current year 4,5689.02 5,238.15 5,914.66
B Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Fair value of the assets at end of prior period 5,312.27 6,019.95 6,283.12
2 Interest Income on plan assets 321.08 389.16 368.90
3 Employer Contributions 20.00 20.00 635.08
4 Return on plan assets greater/(lesser) than discount rate - (19.13) 34.23
5 Benefits paid (1,470.91) (1,097.71) (1,301.38)
Fair Value of assets at the end of current period 4,182.44 5,312.27 6,019.95
C Expense recognized in statement of profit and loss Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Current service cost 61.08 61.88 123.67
2 Net interest on net defined benefit liabi lity (5.89) (8.19) 19.69
Cost recognized in statement of profit and loss 55.19 53.69 143.36
D Expense recognized in the ather comprehensive income Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to experience adjustment 328,79 (70.56) (3.61)
2 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to demographic assumption changes - - -
J Actuarial loss/(gain) due to financial assumption changes 116.72 48.91 (210.81)
4 Return on plan assets(greater)/less than discount rate - 19.13 (34.23)
Actuarial loss/(gain) recognized via OCI at current year end 445.51 (2.52) (248.65)
E Defined benefit cost Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Current service cost 61.08 61.88 123.67
2 Net interest on net defined benefit liabi lity/ (asset) (5.89) (8.19) 19.69
3 Actuarial loss/( ;{gc,ﬁz\d in other compr 44551 (252) (248.65)
i ¢ L'éq( - oty E . .
4 Immediate 09 gn‘ezt’jgd% /losses - othgAd benefit p
Defined berBfE foste, .\ 7\ || X 500.70 51.17 (105.29)
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FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

CIN: U27102CT1979FTCO05468

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

F Expected benefit payments for the year ending As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 Aprit 2023
1st following year 526.50 770.03 552.79
2nd following year 937.81 967.24 1,364.28
3rd following year 746.09 912.37 1,009.65
4th following year 668.50 706.64 920.53
5th following year 726.19 653.29 724.60
6th following year and onwards 1,440.96 1,937.87 2,387.64
0] Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation (years) 4 4 4
(i) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
a Discount rate
Discount rate (in %) 6.50% 7.00% 7.10%
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in discount rate (177.36) (189.48) (216.95)
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in discount rate 195.61 207.55 236.64
b Salary escalation rate
Salary escalation rate first year (in %) 10% 10% 10%
Salary escalation rate thereafter (in %) 6% 6% 6%
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in salary escalation rate 61.43 59.00 62.24
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in salary escalation rate 63.58 (61.68) (63.87)
c Retirement age (in years) 60 60 60
d Mortality rate JALM (2006-08) Ultimate
c) Employee Family Benefit Scheme
The following tables summaries the position of liabilities relating to plans:
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Present value of liability 713.29 808.64 907.39
Liability recognized in balance sheet (unfunded obligation) 713.29 808.64 907.39
A Movement in present values of defined benefit liability Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year 808.64 907.39 940.25
2 Current service cost - - .
3 Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation 4842 56.15 49.54
4 Actuarial loss/(gain) - experience 78.40 75.53 229.61
5 Actuarial loss/{gain) - demographic assumptions = -
6 Actuarial loss/(gain) - financial assumptions 11.75 2.72 (29.55)
7 Benefits paid by the Company (233.92) (233.15) (282.46)
DBO at the end of current year 713.29 808.64 907.39
B Expense recognized in statement of profit and loss Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Current service cost - - =
2 Net Interest on net defined benefit liability 4B.42 56.15 49,54
3 Immediate recognition of(gain)/losses - other long term employee benefit pla 90.15 78.25 200.06
Cost recognized in statement of profit and loss 138.57 134.40 249.60
c Expense recognized in the other comprehensive income Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to experience adjustment 78.40 75.53 229.61
2 ActuaripiAGss/{gain) Bue to demographic assumptlon = - . s
3 Actu (gain) dileto financial assumption c &; 11.76 2,72 (29.55)
4 Actudrial (gain)/loss ariki [5A\Y 90.15 78.25 200.06
Actiafi loss/(gain) e N : ; :
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FSNL Private Limited (formerly knawn as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

CIN: U27102CT1979FTCOD5468

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

D Defined benefit cost Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Current service cost = = -
2 Net interest on net defined benefit liability 48.42 56.15 49.54
3 Actuarial loss/(gain) recognized in other comprehensive income . * »
4 Immediate recognition of (9ains)/losses - other long term employee benefit p 90.15 78.25 200.06
Defined benefit cost 138.57 134.40 249.60
E Expected benefit payments for the year ending As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
1st following year 200.16 206.01 217.40
2nd following year 162.84 181.21 186.56
3rd following year 116.12 149,53 165.93
4th following year 88.02 102.82 138.44
5th following year 56.41 76.94 92.70
6th following year and onwards 140.16 177.56 222.48
(0] Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation (years) 4 4 5
(i) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 Aprit 2023
a Discount rate
Discount rate (in %) 6.50% 7.00% 7.10%
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in discount rate (22.98) (26.14) (30.23)
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease In discount rate 25.20 28.55 32.99
d) Settlement Allowance
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Present value of liability 40.29 46,39 52.16
Liability recognized in balance sheet (unfunded obligation) 40.29 46.39 52.16
A Movement in present values of defined benefit Liabitity Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year 46.39 52.16 62.49
2 Current service cost 1.65 1.92 2.24
3 Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation 3.09 3.48 3.78
4 Actuarial loss/(gain) - experience (6.94) (4.97) (11.78)
5 Actuarial loss/(gain) - demographic assumptions - 0 o
6 Actuarfal loss/(gain) - financial assumptions 0.69 0.16 (1.67)
7 Benefits paid by the Company (4.59) (6.36) (2.90)
DBO at the end of current year 40.29 46.39 52.16
B Expense recognized in statement of profit and loss Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Current service cost 1.65 1.92 2.24
2 Net interest on net defined benefit liability 3.09 3.48 3.78
3 Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses — other long term employee benefit p (6.25) (4.81) (13.45)
Cost recognized in statement of profit and loss (1.51) 0.59 (7.43)
C Expense recognized in the other comprehensive income Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to experience adjustment (6.94) -4.97 (11.78)
2 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to demographic assumption changes # ] ]
3 Actuarial lgssAgain)-the 0.69 0.16 (L67)
4 /105573 (6.25) (4.81) (13.45)
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FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Farra Scrap Nigam Limited)

CIN: U27102CT1979FTCOD5468

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

D Defined benefit cost Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Current service cost 1.65 1.92 2.24
2 Net interest on net defined benefit liability 3.09 3.48 3.78
3 Actuarial loss/(gain) recognized in other comprehensive income - - 2
4 Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses - other long term employee benefit p (6.25) (4.81) (13.45)
Defined benefit cost (1.51) 0.59 (7.43)
E Expected benefit payments for the Year ending As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
1st following year 4,90 7.34 5.07
2nd following year 9.23 9.17 13.28
3rd following year 7.65 8.45 9,88
4th following year 6.70 6.57 9.05
5th following year 7.25 5.78 7.35
6th following year and onwards 15.91 16.25 23.95
(i Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation (years) 4 4,00 5
(ii) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 ApriL 2023
a Discount rate
Discount rate (in %) 6.50% 7.00% 7.10%
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in discount rate (1.35) (1.48) (1.73)
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in discount rate 1.46 1.60 1.86
b Retirement age (in years) 60 60 60
C Mortality rate IALM (2006-08)Ultimate
e) Gift Allowance
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Present value of liability 2e.56 741 5.17
Liability recognized in balance sheet (unfunded obligation) 22.56 7.41 5.17
A Movement in present values of defined benefit liability Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025] 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year 7.41 5.17 6.15
2 Current service cost 0.37 0.19 0.22
3 Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation 0.40 0.33 0.34
4 Actuarlal loss/(gain) - experience 0.97 0.01 0.05
5 Actuarial loss/(gain) - demographic assumptions - -
6 Actuarial loss/(gain) - financial assumptions 0.45 0.04 (0.17)
7 Benefits paid by the Company (3.30) (1.06) (1.42)
8 Past service - plan amendments 16.26 2.73 i
DBO at the end of current year 22.56 7.41 5.17
B Expense recognized in statement of profit and loss Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025| 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Current service cost 037 0.19 0.22
2 Net Interest on net defined benefit liability 0.40 0.33 0.34
3 Past service cost - plan amendments 16.26 2.73 -
4 Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses - other long term employee benefit p 142 0.05 (0.12)
Cost recugni;gﬂj[rhﬂ t of profit and loss 18.45 3.30 0.44
e ~ —
t :~ =
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FSNL Private Limited (formerty known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

CIN: U27102CT1979FTCO05468

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amaunts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Cc Expense recognized in the other comprehensive income Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to experience adjustment 0.97 0.01 0.06
2 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to demagraphic assumption changes = 2 #
3 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to financial assumption changes 0.45 0.04 (0.17)
4 Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during period 1.42 0.05 (0.12)
Actuarial loss/(galn} recognized via OCI at current year end - = ¥
D Defined benefit cost Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Current service cost 16.63 2.92 0.22
2 Net interest on net defined benefit liability 0.40 0.33 0.34
3 Actuarial loss/(gain) recognized in other comprehensive Income - s g
4 Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses - other long term employee benefit p 1.42 0.05 (0.12)
Defined benefit cost 18.45 3.30 0.44
E Expected benefit payments for the year ending As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 Aprit 2023
1st following year 2.20 0.78 0.44
2nd following year 4,27 0.87 1.28
3rd following year 341 0.81 0.94
4th following year 3.00 0.63 0.86
5th following year 4.20 0.63 0.70
6th following year and onwards 8.27 4.77 2.56
(i) Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation (years) 4 4.00 4
(ii) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
a Discount rate
Discount rate (in %) 6.50% 7.00% 7.10%
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in discount rate (0.88) (0.36) (0.18)
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in discount rate 0.96 0.39 0.19
b Retirement age (in years) 60 60 60
c Mortality rate TIALM (2006-08)Uttimate
f)  Contributory Post Retirement Medical Benefit Scheme
The following tables summaries the position of liabilitias relating to plans:
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Present value of liability - 508.37 24497
Liability recognized in balance sheet (unfunded obligation) - 508.37 244.97
A Mavement in present values of defined benefit liability Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year " 244.97 266.84
2 Current service cost - 4.85 5.89
3 Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation - 16.44 15.85
4 Actuarial loss/(gain) - experience - 263.44 5.06
5 Actuarial loss/(gain) - demographic assumptions - -
6 Actuarial loss/(gain) - financial assumptions - 5.44 (26.32)
7 Benefits paid by the Company - (26.77) (22.35)
DBO at the end of current year - 508.37 244.97
B Expense recognized in statement of profit and loss Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Current sg@g - 4,85 5.89
2 Net in:v]r(eg_”“ s 16.44 15.85
e f  Vhend i
Cost refjoinized inistatement of profit and Loss . 21.29 21.74
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FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

CIN: U27102CT1979FTCO05468

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

a)

L&) Expense recognized In the other comprehensive Income Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to experience adjustment - 263.44 5.06
2 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to demographic assumption changes - & o
3 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to financial assumption changes - 5.44 (26.32)
Actuarial loss/(gain) recognized via OCI at current year end - 268.88 (21.26)
D Defined benefit cost Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Current service cost - 4.85 5.89
2 Net interest on net defined benefit liability - 16.44 15.85
3 Actuarial loss/(gain) recognized in other comprehensive income - 268.88 (21.26)
4 Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses ~ other long term employee benefit p - = -
Defined benefit cost - 290.17 0.48
E Expected benefit payments for the year ending As at As at As at
21 March 2025! 31 March 2024
1st following year - 23.56 10.49
2nd following year - 34.53 15.84
3rd following year - 36.82 17.49
4th following year - 37.73 18.70
5th following vear - 38.47 19.23
6th following year and onwards - 212.90 107.84
(] Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation (years) - 11 11
(ii) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
a Discount rate
Discount rate (in %) - 7.00% 7.10%
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in discount rate - (50.40) (24.67)
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in discount rate - 60.23 29.52
b Retirement age (in years) - 60 60
€ Mortality rate TALM (2006-08)Ultimate
Post Retirement Medical Benefit
The following tables summaries the position of liabilities relating to plans:
Particulars As at| As at As at|
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Present value of liability - 4,902.05 4,808,28
Liability recognized In balance sheet (unfunded obligation) - 4,902.05 4,898.28
A Movement in present values of defined benefit liabitity Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year - 4,898.28 4,639.25
2 Current service cost - 47.71 63.66
3 Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation - 341.48 281.34
4 Actuarlal loss/(gain) - experience - (264.61) 712.25
5 Actuarial loss/(gain) - demographic assumptions - -
6 Actuarial loss/(gain) - financial assumptions . 56.65 (595.36)
7 Benefits paid by the Company - (177.46) (202.86)
DBO at the end of cyr¥ént year - 4,902.05 4,898.28
\
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FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited)

CIN: U27102CT1979FTCO05468

Nates forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless atherwise stated)

B Expense recognized in statement of profit and loss Year ended Year ended Year ended
21 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Current service cost - 47.71 63.66
2 Net interest on net defined benefit liability - 341.48 281.34
Cost recognized in statement of profit and loss - 389.19 345.00
C Expense recognized in the other comprehensive income Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 M 24] 31 March 2023
1 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to experience adjustment - (264.61) 712.25
2 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to demographic assumption changes % - -
3 Actuarial loss/(gain) due to financial assumption changes - 56.65 (595.36)
Actuarial loss/(galn) recognized via OCI at current year end - (207.96) 116.89
D Defined benefit cost Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Current service cost - 47.71 63.66
2 Net interest on net defined benefit liability - 341.48 281.34
3 Actuarial loss/(gain) recognized in other comprehensive income - (207.96) 116.89
4 Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses - other long term employee benefit p - = -
Defined benefit cast - 181.23 461.89
E Expected benefit payments for the year ending As at| As at As at
341 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
1st following year - 266.10 3591
2nd following year - 279.41 162.95
3rd following year - 298.44 179.98
4th following year - 316.14 197.17
5th following year - 333.50 213.39
6th following year and onwards 1,900.12 1,300.31
(i Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation (years) - 12.00 13
(ii) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
a Discount rate
Discount rate (in %) - 7.00% 7.10%
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in discount rate i (522.58) (550.31)
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in discount rate - 629.37 668.41
b Medical Inflation
Medical Inflation(in %) . 5% 5%
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in Medical Inflation . 630.48 670.19
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in Medical Inflation - (532.37) (560.92)
c Retirement age (in years) 4 60 60
d Mortality rate e IALM (2006-08)(modified)ULtimate
95 RN
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35

Falr value measurement
Falr value hlerarchy
Fair values are classified into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

« Level 1 quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or Uabilities.
» Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices Included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (Le. as prices) or Indiractly (ie. derived from prices).

* Level 3: inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the period.

{a) Category wise detalls as to carrying value, falr value and the level of falr value measurement hierarchy of the Company's financlal
Instruments are as follows:

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 As at 01 April 2023
Carrying amount Fair valug Carrying amount Fair value Carrylng amount Fair value

Financial assets measured at amartised cost"

- Trade recelvables 10,263.65 10,263.65 15,965.33 16,065.33 8,747.38 8,747.38
- Cash and cash equivalents 5,885.03 5,885.03 1553862 155362 2,722.00 2,722.00
- Other bank balances 1042855 10,428 55 8,126.98 B.126.98 7.992,67 7.992.67
- Other financial assets BD4.63 804,63 283097 2,830.97 8,748.43 B,748.43
Total financlal assets 27,381.86 27,381.86 28,476.90 2_8_.4 76.90 EB|210.4B BBEE 10.48
Financlal Uabllitles measured at amortised cost®

- Lease Uabilities 303.05 303.05 310.05 31005 55631 556.31
- Trade payables 2719.92 2,719.92 4.773.94 4,773.94 381612 3B16.12
- Other financlal Uabilities 221251 221251 2.337.20 2,337.20 205241 205241
Total financlal labllitles 5&35.45 5.&3 5.48 7.421.19 7421.19 6,424.84 6,424.84

* Classified as Level 3
Fair value of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other financial assets, lease Labilities, trade payables, other financial liabilities reasonably approximates to their respective carrying
amounts,

36 Capital management
Equity share capital, borrowings and other equity are considered for the purpose of Company's capital g The Company's objective for capital management is to manage its capital so as to safeguard its
ability to continue as a going concern and to support the growth of the Company, The capital structure of the C Is based on 's jud of Its strategic and day-to-day needs with a focus on

37

total equity o as to maintain investars, creditors and market confidence. The funding requirements are met through equity, borrowings and operating cash. The Campany Is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements,

Financial Rlsk Management

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify
and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk Umits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits, Risk g policles and sy are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market conditions and the Ci s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, alms to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in
which all employees understand their roles and obligations. Further, internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to
the board of directors.

1) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will nat meet its obligations under a financlal Instrument or customer contract, leading ta a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily trade recelvables) and fram its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial Institutions and other financial assets. Management has a credit policy In place and the exposure
to credit risk /s monitored on an ongeing basis.

Credit risk s avallable r and supportive forward-looking Information Including indicators like external credit rating (as far as available), macro-economic Information (such as
regulatory changes, government directives, market Interest rate),

Exposure to Credit Risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The magimum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Particulars As at As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023

- Trade receivables 10,263.65 15,965.33 8,747.38
- Cash and cash equivalents 5,885.03 155362 2,722.00
- Other bank balances 10,428.55 8,126.98 799267
- Other financial assets 804.63 2,830,97 §,748.43
Total 21’.351;86 28,476.90 28,210.48
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The following table provides ageing of trade recelvables at the reporting date:

As at Asat As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Within the credit period 4,288.58 4,115.30 3,503.24
Less than 6 months 5,441.40 9.041.20 3980.40
6 manths - 1 year 1,067.35 1.852.09 -
1-2years 951 66.73
2 -3 years 66.73 - -
More than 3 years 1,780.01 1,780.02 1790.28
Less: Allowance for credit impairment and expocted credit loss (2.389.93) (890.01) (535.54)
Total 10,263.65 15|965.33 &74?.38

1i} Liguidity risk management

Liquidity risk Is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial Uabilities that are settied by delivering cash or another financial asset.

The Company's approach to managing liquidity Is to ensure, as far as possible, that It will always have sufficlent liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under bath normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptahle losses or risk to the Company's reputation. The objective of Company is to ensure liquidity which is sulficient to meet company operational requirements in short-term and long-tarm,

The tables below analyze the Company's financial UablUties into relevant maturity companyings based on thelr contractual maturitles,

Particitars Within 1 year Between 1 and 3 years| More than 3 years Total

31-Mar-25

- Lease Uabilities (undiscounted) 29.70 59,40 794,21 BB3.31
- Trade payables 2.719.92 - = 2,719.92
- Other financial Liabilities 221251 - - 221251
Total 4,962.13 59.40 794.21 5,815.74
31-Mar-24

- Lease liabilities {undiscounted) 35.04 59.40 82391 918.35
- Trade payables 4,773.94 = - 4,773.94
- Other financial liabilities 2,337.20 - - 2,337.20
Total 7.146.18 50.40 823.91 8,029.49
01-Apr-23

- Lease labilities (undiscounted) 277.18 64.74 853,60 1,19554
- Trade payables 3,816.12 - - 381612
- Other financial liabilities 205241 . - 205241
Tatal 5,145.72 64.74 B853.60 7.064.07

i) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future tash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk
and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exp within I I , while op ing the
return.

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair vatue or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates,
The Company accaunts only for fixed rate bank deposits. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Further, the Company does not have any variable rate interest bearing financial instruments, hence there Is no interest rate risk,

(b) Currency risk
Foreign Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may

have a potential Impact on the statement of profit and loss and equity, where any transaction references more than one currency or where assats/labilities are denominated in & currency other than the functionat
currency of the Company.

Forelgn currency risk exposure

The Company has nu exposure to foreign curgeney risk-at the end of reporting period, Hence it is not applicable for the company.

109 ge



FSNL Private Limited (formerly known as Ferro Serap Nigam Limited)

CIN: U27102CT1979FTCo05468

Notes forming part of the finaneial statements for the year ended 31 March zo25
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

38

A

Related party disclosures
Names of related parties and related party relationships

(i)Related parties and nature of the relationship

Name of the party Description of relationship
Konoike Transport Co., Ltd, Holding Company ( holding company w.e.f 21.01,2025 )
MSTC Limited Holding Company ( ceased to be holding company w.e.f 21.01.2025)

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place

(i} Key management personnel

Name of the party Desceription of relationship
Adva Prasad Pandey Independent Director ( From 18.04.2022 to0 01.11,.2024 )
Nishant Agrawal Company Secreiary (joined w.ef. 27.02.2024)
Sumit Kumar Roy Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f 18.05.2023)
Related party transactions
(i) The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year:
Nature of the transaction Name of related party For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Restated)
(i) Other of expenses - by the Company
(a) E-Office and HRMS Software AMC & others MSTC Limited 3.90 2.45
{b) Paid Service charge against e-Auction MSTC Limited 0.68 L59
(ii) ey management personnel compensation For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(Restated)
Short- term benefits 51.13 80.41
Post employment benefits (3.01) (1.41)
Other Long-term employec benefits 2,85 (4.12)
(iii) Independent Director's Sitting Fees For the year ended| For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Adya Prasad Panday 1.35 2.55

ii) There is no balances outstanding

(=5

s,
E&'E‘l&rﬁf ‘l’ht;.@mnt and previous years,
f& A
s %
C.O
BHILAY
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40

Contingent liabilities

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2025| 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
(a) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt
1) For compensation to ex-employees and others under adjudication estimated at 466.33 853.39 83118
i) For repair job at Dolvi Unit claimed by M/s Audumber Engincering Works as per Civil Suit with Civil 55.60] 52,03 50.19
Judge, Alibag
(b) Service Tax
1) Service tax on “Cargo Handling Services” at Bhilai unit as ordered by Dy Commissioner Div-1, Bhilai, 381.91 370.88 359.81
pending before CESTAT,
Delhi , Period Aug 2002 to June 2003
ii) Service Tax on value of oxygen supplied free of cost by SAIL , Bokaro to FSNL as demanded by 48.93 46.74 44.55
Additional Commissioner,
Central Excise & Service Tax, Ranchi - II for the period October 2010 to March 2015, Pending before
CESTAT
iii) Service Tax on “Business Auxiliary Services” at Bokaro unit as ordered by Commissioner Central Excise i = 827.05
and Customs, Ranchi,
pending before CESTAT, Kolkata. Sept 2004 to Feb 2005 and Feb 2008 to March 2010
iv) Service tax on “Business Auxiliary Services” at Burnpur unit as ordered by Assistant Cominissioner, - - 75.30]
Central Excise , Asansol
pending before Tribunal & Commissioner (Appeal), Kolkata, Period April 2005 to Sept 2006
v) Service tax on “Cargo Handling Services” at Duburi unit Demanded by Commissioner, Central Excise, = = 500.71
Bhubaneswar for the
period from May 2004 to March 2007, pending before Appellate Authorities (CESTAT), Kollata
vi) Service Tux on "Business Auxiliary Service” at Durgapur Steel Plant for the period April’2008 to # * 794.15
May'2009, pending before
CESTAT, Kolkata and Commissioner (Appeal), Kolkata,
vii) Service Tax on “Cargo Handling Services” at Duburi unit as demanded by Commissioner, Bhubaneswar - - 272.70
for the period
April’2009 to March'2010 is pending before CESTAT, Kolkata.
viii) Service Tax on *Business Auxiliary Service” at Durgapur Unit as demanded by Commissioner, Central - - 281.10
Excise, Bolpur for the
period October 2009 to March 2010, is pending before CESTAT, Kolkata,
ix) Service tax on “Cargo Handling Services” at Duburi unit demanded by Joint Commissioner, Central " 319.82
Exeise, Bhubaneswar for
th period from April 2007 to Mareh 2009, pending before CESTAT, Kolkata
(c) Sales Tax and Other Taxes
i) For Sales Tax at Durgapur as demanded by West Bengal Sales Tax Department, pending before Sales Tax 2.94 2.94 2.04
Tribunal, Kolkata,
ii) For Goods and Service tax related litigation 198.91 - -
ii) For Penalty regarding registration of Vehicles with RTO, Vizag - 79.84 79.8
C. Outstanding Bank Guarantees 14.00 14.00 14.00
Total 1,168.68 1,420.72 4,454.30
Capital commitments:
Particulars As at Asat Asat
31 March 2025| 31 March 2024 1 April 2023
Estimated amounts of contracts remaing g_xewted on eapital account and not provided tor (net of 655.01 115.95 445.44
advances) Al ".‘:3‘;&).\\ _
Total - 655.01 115.95 445.44
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41 Restatement adjustments summary

a) During the year, the Company adopted lease accounting Including previous years. As a result, it restated the financial statements for the comparative
periods ending March 31, 2024, and April 1, 2023, recognized the lease liability along with the right-of-use asset for the land leased on December 29, 2021.

Additionally, during FY 2023-24, the company paid a security deposit to SAIL for its leased land, which has been recorded at its present value in the
financial statements, with a corresponding impact on the right-of-use (ROU) asset. As a result, the company has restated its financial statements to reflect

this adjustment.

The related impact of lease and security deposit adjustment on Other equity, Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss is as given below:

Particulars

As at 1 April 2023

As at 31 March 2024

Tmpact of Restatement adjustment

Balance Sheet

QOther equity

Right of use asset (net of accumulated depreciation)
Lease liabilities-Non current

Lease liabllities-Current

Other financial asset

Provisions

Other current assets

Provision (current)

Statement of Profit and loss:

Other income

Depreciation and amortisation expense (ROU)
Finance cost (Interest on lease liability)
Other expenses

(40.58)
469.05
310.05
246.27

(46.68)

(96.34)
472,62
303.05

7.00
(18.80)

(230.58)
(36.95)
(0.09)
15.32
30.93
(36.88)

b) During the current year, the Company restated the deferred tax calculations of previous years. As a result, it restated its financial statements for the
comparative periods ending March 31, 2024, and April 1, 2023, recalculated deferred tax with corresponding impact on retained earning.

The related impact of deferred tax adjustment on Other equity, Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss Is as given below:

Particulars

As at 1 April 2023

As at 31 March 2024

Impact of Restatement adjustment

Balance Sheet
Other equity
Deferred Tax Asset
Statement of Profit and loss:
Other income
Deferred tax (additional deferred tax created)

(46.48)
(46.48)

11321
66.74

(113.21)

¢) During the current year, the Company restated the capital reserve and the amaunt, totaling Rs. 37.36 lakhs, has now been reclassified and transferred to
the general reserve. Consequently, the Company has restated its financial statements for the comparative period ending April 1, 2023. This reclassification

has no impact on deferred tax.

d) In addition, the Company ha
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(i) Reconciliation of balance sheet as at 31 March 2024

As at As at
31 March 2024 Regrouping Restatement 31 March 2024
(Audited) (Restated)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equlpment 8,116.96 - - 8,116.96
Right-of-use asset - 472.61 472.61
Capital work-in-progress - - - -
Other intangible assets 9.64 - - 9.64
Financial assets: - - - -
I. Other financial assets 45.34 2,180.00 (18.80) 2,206.54
Deferred tax assets (net) 905.76 - 66.74 §72.50
Non-current tax assets (net) . 617.56 - 617.56
Other non-current assets 623.51 (617.56) - 5.95
Assets classified as held for sale 252.92 (252.92) = =
Total non-current assets (A) 9,954.13 1,927.08 520.55 12,401.76
Current assets
Inventories 537.68 - - 537.68
Financial assets: - - -
I. Trade receivables 20,240.38 (4,275.05) . 15,965.33
Il. Cash and cash equivalents 2,553.62 (1,000.00) - 1,553.62
lil. Bank balances other than (ii.) above 9,306.98 (1,180.00) - 8,126.98
iv. Other financial assets 617.43 7.00 E 624.43
Contract assets - 4,268.05 4,268.05
Other current assets 985.97 - (230.58) 765.39
Assets classified as held for sale 30.33 252.92 - 283.25
Assets retired from active use 17.39 - . 17.39
Total current assets 34,289.78 (1,927.08) (230.58) 32132.12
TOTAL ASSETS 44,243,91 - 289.97 44,533.88
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 3,200.00 - - 3,200.00
Other equity 22,578.66 - 16.88 22,595.54
25,778.66 - 16.88 25,795.54
Liabilities - - -
Non-current liabilities - - -
Financial liabilities - = -
Lease liabilities - - 303.05 303.08
Provisions 7.613.34 - 7,613.34
7,613.34 - 303.05 7,916.39
Current liabilities - - =
Financial liabilitles - - -
i, Lease liabilities - - 7.00 7.00
il. Trade payables - - - =
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and sma 412.86 14.80 B 427.76
4,521.63 (175.44) - 4,346.19
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other
lii. Other financial liabilitles 2,176.66 160.54 2,337.20
Pravisions 1,727.73 & (36.95) 1,690.78
Other current liabillties 1,979.14 - - 1,979.14
Liabilities directly associated with asset class 33.89 - - 33.89
= 10,851.91 - (29.95) 10,821.96
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIAB 44,243.91 - 289.98 44,533.89
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{il) Reconciliation of balance sheet as at 1 April 2023

As at As at
1 April 2023 01 April 2023
(Audited) Regrouping Restatement (Restated)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 7.422.88 - - 7,422.88
Right-of-use asset - - 469.05 469.05
Capital work-in-progress 8.18 - - 818
Other intangible assets 20.44 - - 20.44
Financial assets: - - - -
1. Other financial assets 26.18 7,640.00 » 7,666.18
Deferred tax assets (net) 721.79 - (46.48) 675.31
Non-current tax assets (net) - 1,599.53 - 1,599.53
Other non-current assets 1,605.84 (1,599.53) - 6.31
Assets classified as held for sale 224.41 (224.41) - -
Total non-current assets (A) 10,029.72 7,415.59 422.57 17,867.88
Current assets
Inventories 514,67 - 514.67
Financial assets; - - -
I. Trade receivables 12,968.29 (4,220.91) - 8,747.38
ii. Cash and cash equivalents 2,722.00 - - 2,722.00
iii. Bank balances other than (li.) above 15,632.67 (7.640.00) - 7.992.67
Iv. Other financial assets 1,082.24 - - 1,082.24
Contract assets - 4,220.91 - 4,220.91
Other current assets 808.52 - - 808.52
Assets classified as held for sale 8.49 224.41 - 232.90
Assets retired from active use 32.14 - - 32.14
Tatal current assets 33,769.02 (7,415.59) - 26,353.43
TOTAL ASSETS 43,798.74 . 422.57 44,221.31
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 3,200.00 - - 3,200.00
Other equity 18,689.99 - (87.06) 18,602.93
21,889.99 - (87.06) 21,802.93
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities - - 310.04 310.04
Provisions 7.833.23 - - 7,833.23
7,833.23 - 310.04 8,143.27
Current liabilities
Financial liabilitles
|. Lease llabllities - - 246.27 246.27
ii. Trade payables - =
(a) Total outstanding dues of micra and sma 382,67 (200.60) - 182.07
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other 3,436.61 197.44 - 3,634.05
iii. Other financial liabilities 2,049.25 316 - 2,052.41
Provisions 6,727.18 - (46.68) 6.680.50
Other current liabilities 1,474.87 - - 1,474.87
Liabilities directly associated with asset class 4.95 - . 4.95
14,075.53 0.00 (46.68) 14,028.85
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIAB 43,798.75 0.00 176.30 43,975.05
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(ill) Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2024

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2024
(Audited) Regrouping Restatement (Restated)

Revenue from operations 43,461.01 - - 43,461.01
Other Income 3,311.70 (1.03) 0.09 3,310.76
Total Income 46,772.71 (1.03) 0.09 46,771.77
Expenses
Operational Expenses 6,307.70 - - 6,307.70
Employee benefits expense 11,201.51 - - 11,201.51
Finance costs 5 - 30.93 3083
Depreciation and amortization expense 1,683.09 - 15.32 1,698.41
Other expenses 18,769.43 (1.03) (36.88) 18,721.52

37,951.73 (1.03) 9.37 37,960.07
Profit (loss) befare tax 8,820.98 - (9.28) 8.811.70
Tax expense
-Current tax 2,512.58 . 7 2,512.58
-Deferred tax (183.98) - (113.21) (297.19)
Profit (loss) for the year 6,492.38 - 103.93 6,596.31

Other comprehensive income (loss)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of defined benefit liability (58.40) - - (58.40)
Income tax relating to these items 14.70 - - 14.70
Other comprehensive income (loss) for (43.70) - - (43.70)
the vear. net of tax
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the 6,448.68 - 103.93 6,652.61
year
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Segment reporting
Company is engaged in the business of scrap recovery and allied jobs in various steel plants in India, which is

tne principal business activity of the company. However as per para 11 of Ind AS 108 i.e. "Operating segment”, a
business segment should be identified as a reportable segment if its reported revenue, including both sales to
external customers and inter segment sales or transfer is 10 percent or more of the combined revenue, internal
and external of all reporting segments.

Further as regard to geographical segment, the primary criteria as envisaged in the accounting standard are
being considered of which details are as follows:

a. Similarity of economic and political conditions.

b. Relationship between operations in different geographical areas.

c. Proximity of operations.

d. Special risk associated with operations in particular area.

e. Exchange control regulations.

f. Underlying currency risks.

Since the company is rendering services to units that are subject to same economical and political conditions
and are therefore exposed to same operational risks viz. exchange control regulations, underlying currency risks,
proximity of operations etc. Accardingly relationship between operation in different geographical areas does not
differ from each other and therefore is not relevant for the company or the management.

The company has three major customers out of which revenue of approximately Rs. (in lakhs) 33,156.95,
5,019.83 & 7,718.40 ( 31st March 2024 Rs (in lakhs) 31,534.21; 6,446.07; 5,480.73) are derived respectively
from each customer.

The current assets, loans and advances are good and recoverable and are approximately of the values, if realized
in the ordinary course of business unless and to the extent stated otherwise in the accounts. Balances of trade
payables, trade receivables, loans and advances are subject to reconciliation and confirmation.

During the year ended March 31, 2025 the Company has not declared and paid any dividend. For the year ended
March 31, 2024 the company has declared and paid interim dividend of Rs. 1,280.00 lakhs i.e. 40% of paid-up
equity share capital to the shareholders of M/s MSTC (ceased to be holding company w.e.f 21,01.2025). The final
dividend for the year ended March 31, 2023 paid during the year ended March 31, 2024 was Rs. 1,280.00 Lakhs
to the shareholders of M/s MSTC (ceased to be holding company w.e.f 21.01.2025).

The land on which the plant and building of the company are situated at Rourkela, Burnpur, Bhilai, Bokaro,
Vizag, Durgapur, Salem, Nagarnar, Midhani are neither freehold nor leasehold. The company has acquired the
right of free use from landholders as a part of the service agreement. The company has however, acquired
leasehold land from SAIL-BSP on perpetual lease of 33 years w.e.f December 29, 2021 on which the Registered
office Building has been constructed.

The fair value of Assets classified as held for sale is more than the carrying amount of the asset.

The company has not traded or involved in Crypto or virtual currency during the year.
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49 The following are the analytical ratios for the year ended 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024:

Particulars Numerator Denominator For the year| For the year Reasons**
ended/ As | ended/ As
at 31 March| at 31 March
2025 2024
Current ratio Current assets  |Current 3.30 2.97 11.26% -
(in times) liabilities
Debt equity ratio Total debt Total equity - - -| Not applicable as company does
(in times) not have any borrowing
Debt service coverage ratio (in|Earnings Debt service* - - -| Not applicable as company does
times) available for nat have any borrowing
debt*
Return on equity (in % ) Profit for the Average 20.83% 27.57% -24.47% .
year shareholders'
equity
Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goods Average - - 0.00% |from service related to
sold inventory Processing of Scrap & other
items
Trade receivables turnover (in|Revenue from Average trade 3.50 3.52 -0.50% -
times) operations receivables
Trade payables turnover Purchase of Average trade 6.27 5.07 23.85% &
(in times) stock in trade payables
Net capital turnover ratio Revenue fram Average working 2.05 2.60 -21.34% -
(in times) operations capital
Net profit margin (in %) Profit after tax  |Revenue from 13.72% 15.18% -9.61% -
operations
Return on capital employed  |Earnings before |Capital 26.72% 34.28% -22.06% -
(in %) interest and employed
Return on Investment Total income Average - - -|Caompany has not made any
from investment [investment for investment during the year and
the year in previous year

*Profit after tax + interest expense +depreciation & amartisation expense + exceptional items + loss/(gain) on sale of fixed assets)

~Interest + Principal repayments (excluding lease liabilities)

**Variance has been expLainecl for any change in the ratio by more than 25% as compared to the ratio of previous year.

Company has not made a

L},“_ \ % .l|
Gl |
..C )w;

&Eﬁﬁffd g the year and previous year,
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@

(i)
(iif)
(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

Additional disclosures required by Schedule 111

Details of benami property held

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

Borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current asset

The Company has not taken any loans/ borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current asset.

Wiliful defaulter

Company has not been declared Willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements

The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

Utilization of borrowed funds and share premium

A. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the

understanding that the Intermediary shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate

Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

B. The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether

recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate

Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

Undisclosed income
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that
has not been recorded in the books of account.

Details of crypto currency or virtual currency

The Company has not traded or invested in erypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

Valuation of property, plant and equipment including intangible asset

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous
year.

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

Utilization of borrowings availed from banks and financial institutions
The Company has not taken any loans/ borrowings from banks or financial institutions in the current or previous financial year.

Relationship with struck off Companies

The Company does not have any transactions or balances with the Companies whose name is struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Loans or advances to specified persons
The Company has not given loan or advances to specified person.

Previous years split up and regrouping
Figures of the previous years have been split up and regrouped wherever necessary so as to correspond to current year's figures.

Notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information referred to our report of even date.

For V.RAWAL & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Firm Registration No: 011303N
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